
 
 
 

 
Democratic Services Your ref:  
Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA Our ref:  
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 14 February 2012 
Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 395090  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk   
 
 
To: All Members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee - Investment Panel 

 
Councillor Charles Gerrish (Chair), Councillor Gabriel Batt, Councillor Nicholas Coombes, 
Councillor Mary Blatchford, Bill Marshall and Ann Berresford 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Avon Pension Fund Committee - Investment Panel: Wednesday, 22nd February, 2012  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Avon Pension Fund Committee - Investment 
Panel, to be held on Wednesday, 22nd February, 2012 at 9.30 am in the Aix en Provence 
Room - Guildhall, Bath. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
A buffet lunch for Members will be served at 1pm after the private workshop following the public 
meeting.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Sean O'Neill 
for Chief Executive 
 
 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

 
This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Sean O'Neill who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 395090 or by calling at the Riverside Offices 
Keynsham (during normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 
The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as 
above. 
 
Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 
Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

5. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

6. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Avon Pension Fund Committee - Investment Panel - Wednesday, 22nd February, 2012 
 

at 9.30 am in the Aix en Provence Room - Guildhall, Bath 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 

Note 9. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 Members who have an interest to declare are asked to state: 

 
(a) the Item No in which they have an interest;  
(b) the nature of the interest; and  
(c) whether the interest is personal or personal and prejudicial. 
 
Any Member who is unsure about the above should seek the advice of the Monitoring 
Officer prior to the meeting in order to expedite matters at the meeting itself. 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee and Officers of 

personal/prejudicial interests in respect of matters for consideration at this meeting, 
together with their statements on the nature of any such interest declared. 
 

4. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
5. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 

PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  
6. ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS  
 To deal with any petitions or questions from Councillors and, where appropriate, co-

opted and added members. 
 

7. MINUTES: 22 NOVEMBER 2011 (Pages 5 - 8) 
8. REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 

2011 (Pages 9 - 60) 
9. TT UK EQUITY MANDATE (Pages 61 - 78) 
 Members are invited to consider the reasons for and against disclosure as set out in 

the public interest test document attached to the report, and then to pass the following 
resolution before discussing Appendices 1 and 2: 
 



“Having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not disclosing 
relevant information, the Committee resolves that, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting for these items because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended.” 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on  
01225 395090. 
 
 



Bath and North East Somerset Council 
 

 
Page 1 

 

 
AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE - INVESTMENT PANEL 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held 
Tuesday, 22nd November, 2011, 3.00 pm 

 
Members: Councillor Charles Gerrish (Chair), Councillor Gabriel Batt, Ann Berresford, 
Councillor Mary Blatchford, Councillor Nicholas Coombes and Andy Riggs (In place of Bill 
Marshall) 
Advisors: Tony Earnshaw (Independent Advisor) and John Finch (JLT Investment 
Consultancy) 
Also in attendance: Tony Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions), Liz Feinstein 
(Investments Manager) and Matthew Betts (Assistant Investments Manager) 

 
9 
  

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure. 
  

10 
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none. 
  

11 
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies were received from Bill Marshall, for whom Andy Riggs substituted. 
  

12 
  

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
There was none. 
  

13 
  

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  
 
There were none. 
  

14 
  

ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS  
 
There were none. 
  

15 
  

MINUTES: 7 SEPTEMBER 2011  
 
These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
  

16 
  

REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR PERIODS ENDING 30 SEPT 
2011  
 
The Assistant Investments Manager presented the report. He highlighted three 
points of note: 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 

 
Page 2 of 4 

 

1. Man had reduced the number of underlying managers in their portfolio, in line 
with the recommendations of the review of hedge funds in March 2011. This 
restructuring had been completed in October. 
 

2. A letter had been received from BlackRock in response to questions about 
their corporate governance raised at the meeting with them on 7th September. 
This was attached as Appendix 4 to the report. 
 

3. The active currency hedging programme had been implemented in July and 
would be fully implemented within a 12-month timeframe. Currency 
movements favoured the fund during the quarter and therefore the active 
currency hedge reduced overall return by 0.1%. 
 

Mr Finch commented on the JLT investment report (Appendix 2 to this agenda item.) 
He said that market volatility had been significant during the period since 30 June 
2011. There were no fundamental concerns with any manager. Aggregate manager 
performance as shown on page 13 of the JLT report demonstrated that 
diversification across different assets had added value to the Fund during the last 3 
months. The second graph on page 13 demonstrated the differences in returns 
generated by the equity managers over the last 12 months.  
 
Members agreed that the performance of the Fund had been reasonably good in 
current market conditions. 
 
A Member asked for an update on how cash held internally (paragraph 7.4 of the 
cover report) had been invested. The Investments Manager replied that the amount 
of cash held by the Treasury Management Team had been reduced. 
 
Before consideration of Exempt Appendix 3 (TT Peer Group Analysis) and Exempt 
Appendix 5 (Summaries of Investment panel meetings with Investment Managers) to 
the report, the Panel RESOLVED as follows: 
 

that having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by 
not disclosing relevant information in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for these items because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as 
amended. 
 

The Committee returned to open session 
 
Mr Finch tabled a paper setting out the issues of the euro crisis and some strategic 
options that the Fund might wish to consider.  He said that the past 18 months had 
been the most extraordinary from an investment perspective that he could recall. In 
2010 there had been talk of the UK’s credit rating being reduced, but now the UK 
was seen as a safe haven. The change in yields over the period, shown in Chart 1, 
resulted almost entirely from the Eurozone crisis. Yields had been pushed to 
unprecedented levels. The last time that bonds were 2.5% was after the war when 
yields were restricted by legislation.  It was noted that the UK has benefitted from the 
long term structure of its debt when compared with some European countries.  
 

Page 6



 

 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Chart 2 of his paper showed that about 50% of UK exports went to the EU. 
Admittedly these included exports shipped to Rotterdam whose ultimate destination 
was outside the EU. The effect of austerity programmes and cascading debt (Italy, 
for example, owes €309bn to French banks), would depress EU economies and 
have a significant impact on the UK.  
 
On the positive side, there were UK companies which were major global players, 
with diverse geographical revenue streams.  
 
In his view speculation was not a major factor in the present crisis in the Eurozone. 
The fact was that a number of countries had borrowing levels that were completely 
out of scale with their GDP; even Germany was outside the limits set when the Euro 
was created. The situation was very different from the credit crisis of 2008 which was 
a liquidity and banking system crisis.  Then corporate bonds yields had risen on 
credit concerns.  This time corporate bond yields had fallen, but gilt yields had gone 
down even more. Chart 3 showed the spread between government and corporate 
bonds and how low the yields on UK government bonds are.  Chart 4 also illustrated 
that, unlike in 2008, there had not been much increase in concern about the credit 
worthiness of companies. The price earnings ratio of equities had fallen, but this had 
been because of a fall in price, suggesting that there is fear about the current and 
future level of company earnings. Chart 5 showed the phenomenal increase in the 
value of long-dated government bonds.  As the capital value increases, so the yield 
decreases and the price of government bonds impacts on the valuation of the Fund 
as the gilt yield is the reference rate (used in the discount rate) for valuing pension 
liabilities. 
 
The discussion then addressed the question of what, if anything, should the Fund 
do? Should it stick with government bonds, or should it realise their capital value and 
invest in other assets? He recalled that some time ago the Committee agreed a 
tactical switch between gilts and corporate bonds which could be repeated.  
 
In response to questions, Mr Finch said that the current crisis was very much a 
political one. It could be traced back to allowing countries with loose fiscal policies to 
join the Eurozone. He thought that yields on government bonds would continue to be 
low and that they could fall even further. But companies had strong balance sheets, 
and if the Fund was looking for an asset that would appreciate or hold value and 
generate a higher yield in a prolonged period of low growth, corporate bonds would 
be an attractive option compared to gilts. 
 
The Chair asked about the possibility of B&NES and the other local authorities in the 
Fund issuing bonds, as some local authorities were planning to do. Mr Finch 
responded that there might be a problem with the credit rating of some local 
authorities. The Investments Manager said there might be statutory restrictions on 
the Fund investing in the bonds of the Fund’s administering authority (and possibly 
other Fund employers).  Mr Finch said that government and local authority projects, 
such as housing schemes, could generate good returns, but there was a shortage of 
capital for this at present. Corporate debt would be a safer option. 
 
In response to a question about the impact of the government’s austerity 
programme, Mr Finch said that the danger was that, as in Greece, tax revenues 
declined so that austerity turned into a vicious circle. Home ownership had 
underpinned a great deal of private borrowing; if people felt that the value of their 

Page 7



 

 
Page 4 of 4 

 

homes was decreasing, they restricted their spending, so a stabilisation of house 
prices would help the economy. 
 
In response to a question about the UK’s debt, he said that most was owed to the 
US andthe UK’s biggest debtors were Ireland, Japan and Portugal, followed by 
Spain. 
 
He advised that if there was to be a switch from gilts into corporate bonds, it would 
be best to do it fairly quickly ahead of the Christmas break if possible. The Head of 
Business, Finance and Pensions suggested that the Avon Pension Fund Committee 
should have the earliest possible opportunity to consider the issues and proposal, 
and that a report should be presented at the next meeting (9 December 2011). The 
Panel agreed in principle, given that they did not have a detailed proposal to 
consider and so could not put forward a substantive recommendation to the 
Committee. 
 
It was accordingly RESOLVED:  
 

1. To invite Officers to prepare a paper on switching from gilts to corporate 
bonds and to recommend to the Avon Pension Fund Committee to consider it 
at its meeting on 9 December 2011. In addition, the implementation of any 
decision to switch should be delegated to Officers. 
 

2. To note the performance report. 
  

17 
  

SSGA POOLED FUNDS  
 
The Investments Manager presented the report.  
 
Members agreed that there was no need for immediate concern that the 
management of the pooled fund would suffer because of the reduction in the number 
of investors.  
 
RESOLVED to recommend to the Avon Pension Fund Committee that no further 
action is required and that Officers will continue to monitor fund size as part of their 
on-going monitoring. 
  

18 
  

PANEL WORKPLAN  
 
RESOLVED to note the workplan. 
  
 
 

The meeting ended at 4.46 pm  
 

Chair(person)  
 

Date Confirmed and Signed  
 

Prepared by Democratic Services 
 

Page 8



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Investment Panel 
MEETING 
DATE: 22 FEBRUARY 2012 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: Review Of Investment Performance For Periods Ending 31 Dec 2011 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – Fund Valuation 
Appendix 2 – JLT performance monitoring report 
 

1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 This paper reports on the investment performance of the Fund and seeks to 

update the Investment Panel on routine strategic areas concerning the Fund’s 
investments. 

1.2 This report contains performance statistics for periods ending 31 Dec 2011. 
1.3 The main body of the report comprises the following sections: 

 Section 4. Investment Performance: A - Fund, B - Investment Managers. 
 Section 5. Investment Strategy 
 Section 6. Funding Level Update 

   
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Investment Panel: 
2.1 Notes the information as set out in the report. 
2.2 Identifies issues to be notified to the Committee.                                               

Agenda Item 8

Page 9



Printed on recycled paper 2

 
3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The returns achieved by the Fund for the three years commencing 1 April 2010 

will impact the next triennial valuation which will be calculated as at 31 March 
2013. Section 6 of this report discusses the trends in the Fund’s liabilities and the 
funding level. 
 

4 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE  
4.1 JLT’s report in Appendix 2 provides a full commentary on the performance of the 

fund (pages 10 to 15), the investment managers (pages 16 to 36) and a 
commentary on investment markets (pages 5 to 7). In the section on the Fund 
(page 10), three year rolling returns are included to provide a longer term 
perspective. 

A – Fund Performance   
4.2 The Fund’s assets increased by £135m (+5.6%) in the quarter, giving a value for 

the investment Fund of £2,623m at 31 December 2011.  Appendix 1 provides a 
breakdown of the Fund valuation and allocation of monies by asset class and 
managers.  

4.3 The Fund’s investment return and performance relative to benchmarks excluding 
currency hedging is summarised in Table 1. 

3 years 
 (p.a.)

Avon Pension Fund (incl. currency hedging) 5.6%

Avon Pension Fund (excl. currency hedging) 5.7% -0.2% 10.0%

Strategic benchmark 5.4% -0.7% 9.6%
(Fund relative to benchmark) (+0.3%) (+0.5%) (+0.4%)
Customised benchmark 6.1% 0.7% 10.3%
(Fund relative to benchmark) (-0.4%) (-0.9%) (-0.3%)
Local Authority Average Fund 5.2% -1.5% 9.6%
(Fund relative to benchmark) (+0.5%) (+1.3%) (+0.4%)

Table 1: Fund Investment Performance
Periods to 31 Dec 2011

3 months  12 
months

 

4.4 Note that because currency hedging has only been in place for less than 12 
months, for consistency all “Fund relative to benchmark” data in the above table 
excludes currency hedging. The impact of currency hedging is addressed at 
paragraph 4.9. 

4.5 Avon Pension Fund: Quarterly return driven by positive returns from all equity 
markets with the exception of Japan, supported by strong returns from UK bonds 
and smaller returns from property and hedge funds. The marginally negative 

Page 10



Printed on recycled paper 3

annual return was a result of negative returns across all equity markets over the 
year (with the exception of North America) negating strong returns from the bond 
portfolio. 

4.6 Versus Strategic Benchmark (which reflects an allocation of 60% equities, 
20% bonds, 10% property, 10% hedge funds): Annual relative outperformance 
driven by the Fund being overweight UK government bonds (versus the 
benchmark) which performed strongly over the period and as a result of the 
emerging markets, hedge fund and property managers outperforming their 
benchmarks. Over the quarter the Fund benefitted from being underweight 
Japanese equities and hedge funds and from the outperformance by the property 
managers. This is despite a small cash holding.   

4.7 Versus Customised Benchmark (which reflects the individual benchmarks 
of each manager and as such, measures the relative performance of the 
managers as a whole): Underperformed the benchmark over the year, with 
relative underperformance of the Hedge Funds and TT, more than offsetting 
outperformance by Jupiter, Genesis and the property managers. The other 
managers performed broadly in line with their benchmarks. 

4.8 Versus Local Authority Average Fund: Annual relative outperformance driven 
by Fund's lower than average allocation to equities which performed negatively 
over the year, and higher than average allocation to bonds which performed well 
and provided protection from equity losses.  

4.9 Currency Hedging: The implementation of the active currency hedging 
programme commenced in July and will be implemented fully within a 12 month 
timeframe. This quarter movements in currency markets had a mixed impact on 
the Fund, with Sterling strengthening against the Euro (in December) but 
weakening against the Dollar and Yen.  The hedging programme detracted 0.1% 
from the overall Fund return for the quarter.  The programme provided protection 
from the currency loss on Euro denominated assets and passed through some of 
the currency gains from the Dollar and Yen assets. 

4.10 Since the beginning of 2012 global equity markets have been more positive with 
the FTSE All Share index rising by over. 5% (to 8 February).  In contrast, the total 
return for the Over 15-year Gilt index was c. -3% during the same period. 

B – Investment Manager Performance 
4.11 A detailed report on the performance of each investment manager has been 

produced by JLT – see pages 16 to 36 of Appendix 2. Their report does not 
identify any new performance issues with the managers. 

4.12 The Investment Panel are receiving a presentation from TT under another 
agenda item as part of the ongoing review of TT’s performance. 

4.13 Performance reporting for Partners is lagged by a quarter. However, the latest 
estimate for the quarter ending 31 December 2011 is -1.1%. 

5 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
5.1 JLT’s report did not highlight any strategy issues for consideration.  

Page 11



Printed on recycled paper 4

5.2 During the quarter the decision to make a tactical allocation within the bond 
portfolio was implemented. On 12 December the Fund switched £80m (c.3% of 
the total Fund assets) from UK Gilts into UK corporate bonds to provide some 
protection from future rises in gilt yields (which are at historic lows) and in so 
doing achieve a higher yield from corporate bonds and an opportunity for capital 
returns should the spread between gilts and corporate bonds narrow.  Officers will 
monitor changes in the relative yields to identify when the spread between gilts 
and corporate bonds reaches the pre-determined trigger at which point the 
allocation will be reversed. 
 

6 FUNDING LEVEL UPDATE 
6.1 As at 31 Dec 2011 the Actuary has estimated that the funding level has 

deteriorated to 68%, at 31 March 2010 triennial valuation it was 82%.  (Note: The 
revised funding level takes into account benefit payments and contributions 
received during the period. However, the actuary uses estimates for asset returns 
and cashflows so the update is only an indication of the trend in the funding level.) 

6.2 Since the 2010 valuation, the value of the assets has increased by £257m (10%) 
to £2.7bn, and liabilities increased by £985m (32%) to £3.99bn. As a result the 
deficit has increased from £552m to £1,280m, with much of the deterioration 
happening in the last six months.   

6.3 Table 2 shows the change in financial assumptions: 
Table 2: Change in Financial Assumptions

31 March 2010 30 Sept 2011 31 Dec 2011

UK Gilt yield (nominal) 4.50% 3.60% 3.00%
Real yield 0.70% 0.20% -0.20%
Market Implied RPI p.a. 3.80% 3.40% 3.20%
Inflation adjustment p.a. 0.80% 0.80% 0.80%
CPI Inflation p.a. 3.00% 2.60% 2.40%  

6.4 The reduction in the gilt yield from 4.3% at 30 June to 3.0% at end of December is 
the reason why liabilities have increased so significantly since June (when 
liabilities were estimated to be £3.3bn).  More positively, implied inflation has 
continued to decline which has helped offset some of the impact from the 
reduction in gilt yields.  The announcement of further “quantitative easing” by the 
MPC in early February should keep nominal gilts yields at depressed levels for the 
immediate future.  It should however be noted that this is just a snapshot of 
the funding level at a particular point in time. 

 
7 RISK MANAGEMENT 
7.1 A key risk to the Fund is that the investments fail to generate the returns required 

to meet the Fund’s future liabilities.  This risk is managed via the Asset Liability 
Study which determines the appropriate risk adjusted return profile (or strategic 
benchmark) for the Fund and through the selection process followed before 

Page 12



Printed on recycled paper 5

managers are appointed.  This report monitors the return of the strategic 
benchmark and the performance of the investment managers.  An Investment 
Panel has been established to consider in greater detail investment performance 
and related matters and report back to the committee on a regular basis. 

8 EQUALITIES 
8.1 This report is primarily for information only. 
9 CONSULTATION 
9.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore consultation is not necessary. 
10 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
10.1 The issues to consider are contained in the report. 
11 ADVICE SOUGHT 
11.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 

Contact person  Matt Betts, Assistant Investments Manager (Tel: 01225 
395420) 

Background papers Data supplied by The WM Company 
Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



             APPENDIX 1 
AVON PENSION FUND VALUATION – 31 DECEMBER 2011 

 

Passive Multi-Asset Active Equities Enhanced 
Indexation 

Active 
Bonds 

Funds 
of 

Hedge 
Funds 

Property In House 
Cash/ TOTAL 

Avon 
Asset 
Mix % 

All figures in £m Black-
Rock 

Black-
Rock 2* TT Int’l Jupiter 

(SRI) Genesis Schroder 
Global Invesco State 

Street 
Royal 
London  

Schroder 
& 

Partners 
Currency 
Hedging 

  

EQUITIES               
UK 254.2 14.5 124.2 99.4  13.6       505.9 19.2% 
North America 124.7 8.6    59.5       192.8 7.4% 
Europe 105.7 4.6    17.5  27.5     154.5 5.9% 
Japan 34.3     6.2  26.7     66.8 2.6% 
Pacific Rim 43.0     14.7  25.2     82.8 3.2% 
Emerging Markets     127.3 16.8       144.2 5.5% 
Global ex-UK       159.4      159.4 6.1% 
Global inc-UK 222.0            222.0 8.5% 
Total Overseas 528.3 13.2   127.3 114.8 159.4 79.4     1022.5 39.0% 
Total Equities 782.6 27.7 124.2 99.4 127.3 128.4 159.4 79.4     1528.4 58.3% 
BONDS               
Index Linked Gilts 194.8            194.8 7.4% 
Conventional Gilts 115.4 28.9           144.3 5.5% 
Sterling Corporate 6.8        135.2    227.6 8.7% 
Overseas Bonds 81.0            81.0 3.1% 
Total Bonds 398.0 28.9       135.2    647.7 24.7% 
Hedge Funds          210.1   210.1 8.0% 
Property           194.2  194.2 7.4% 
Cash 5.4 18.7 1.2 6.7  1.3     0.8 8.5 42.6 1.8% 
TOTAL 1185.9 75.3 125.4 106.1 1237.3 129.8 159.4 79.4 135.2 210.1 195.0 8.5 2622.9 100.0% 

N.B. (i) Valued at BID (where appropriate) 
 (ii) In-house cash = short term deposits at NatWest managed on our behalf by B&NES plus general cash held at Custodian 
 (iii) BlackRock 2 * = represents the assets to be invested in property, temporarily managed by BlackRock 

P
age 15



P
age 16

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  
  
   

Review for period to 31 December 2011 
Avon Pension Fund    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JLT INVESTMENT CONSULTING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Avon Pension Fund  
  
  
  2 

Contents 

Section One – Executive Summary 3 

Section Two – Market Background 5 

Section Three – Fund Valuations 8 

Section Four – Performance Summary 10 

Section Five – Individual Manager Performance 16 

Jupiter Asset Management – UK Equities (Socially Responsible Investing) 18 

TT International – UK Equities (Unconstrained) 19 

Schroder – Global Equity Portfolio (Unconstrained) 20 

Genesis Asset Managers – Emerging Market Equities 22 

Invesco – Global ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 23 

SSgA – Europe ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 24 

SSgA – Pacific incl. Japan Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 25 

MAN – Fund of Hedge Funds 26 

Signet – Fund of Hedge Funds 27 

Stenham – Fund of Hedge Funds 28 

Gottex – Fund of Hedge Funds 29 

Schroder – UK Property 30 

Partners – Overseas Property 31 

Royal London Asset Management – Fixed Interest 33 

BlackRock – Passive Multi-Asset 34 

BlackRock No.2 – Property account (“ring fenced” assets) 35 

Appendix A – Market Events 36 

Appendix B – Glossary of Charts 41 

Appendix C – Summary of Mandates 43 
 

Bekki Jones, BSc (Hons), IMC  Jig Sheth, BSc, IMC 
Senior Investment Consultancy Analyst  Consultant 
  February 2012  

Page 18



 

Avon Pension Fund  3 

Section One – Executive Summary 
• This report is produced by JLT Investment Consulting ("JLT") to assess the performance and risks of 

the investment managers of the Avon Pension Fund (the “Fund”), and of the Fund as a whole.    

 

Fund 

• The total Fund's assets increased in value by £135m over the final quarter of 2011, to £2,623m as at 

the end of December 2011.  The total Fund underperformed the customised benchmark, returning 
5.6% versus the customised benchmark return of 6.1%. 

• This underperformance is a result of the combined underperformance of the Fund’s investment 
managers against their benchmarks. Manager performance is discussed below. 

 

Strategy 

• The Fund's positive strategic benchmark return was driven by positive equity markets, particularly 
within the UK and US, and positive UK government bond returns.  Corporate bonds also produced 

positive returns but to a lesser extent. 

• The strategic weighting to alternatives (property and fund of hedge funds) was a negative contributor 

relative to equities but still an absolute positive contributor to the benchmark. 

• Outperformance by the Fund against the strategic benchmark over the year was largely a result of 

being overweight UK index linked gilts which performed strongly over the period. The quarterly 
outperformance resulted from being underweight hedge funds (which performed relatively poorly) and 

the outperformance by the property managers against the property benchmark. 

 

Managers 

• The strongest outperformance over the quarter was from TT International, outperforming the 

benchmark return by 2.1% to give an absolute return of 10.5%.   

• Genesis (+0.3%), SSgA Europe (+0.1%) and SSgA Pacific Rim (+0.2%) also contributed positively 

amongst the active / enhanced equity managers but Invesco (-0.8%), Jupiter (-2.0%) and Schroder 
Equity   (-1.1%) all underperformed. 

• Schroder Property and Partners both produced positive absolute returns but only the former 
outperformed its benchmark return. 

• All fund of hedge fund managers produced negative absolute (and therefore relative) returns, the most 
significant of which was from Man, with an absolute return of -3.4%. 

• Royal London outperformed its corporate bond benchmark (2.7% vs 2.3%). 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

Avon Pension Fund  4 

Key points for consideration 

• There are no fundamental concerns with either the strategy or the Fund's managers. 

• The Fund has taken a tactical position to increase its holdings with RLAM corporate bonds and reduce  

its investments in government bonds.  Monitoring of this switch is now underway to ensure that a 

switch back into government bonds takes place when the trigger level in the corporate bond spread is 

reached.   

• Despite there appearing to have been no immediate negative impact on the performance of the SSgA 

Europe ex UK Enhanced Indexation Fund, following the significant fall in the size of this fund, it should 
continue to be monitored carefully. 

• Over the coming quarters the implementation of Record's active currency hedging mandate is 
expected to be completed, after which more meaningful analysis of the impact can be made. 

• The Pensions Committee for the Fund continues to develop and amend its Environmental, Social and 
Governance Policy and the relative performance of the Jupiter UK Equity portfolio should be 

considered in this context. 

 

Page 20



 

Avon Pension Fund  5 

Section Two – Market Background 
• The table below summarises the various market returns to 31 December 2011, which relate the 

analysis of the Fund's performance to the global economic and market background. 

 
Market statistics 

Market Returns 

Growth Assets 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 
 Change in Sterling 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 

UK Equities 8.4 -3.5  Against US Dollar -0.2 -0.7 

Overseas Equities 7.2 -6.9  Against Euro 3.1 2.6 

USA 11.9 2.5  Against Yen -0.4 -5.8 

Europe 3.3 -15.0  Yields as at 31 Dec 2011 % p.a. 

Japan -3.6 -12.9  UK Equities 3.52 

Asia Pacific (ex Japan) 4.4 -14.8  UK Gilts (>15 yrs) 2.94 

Emerging Markets 4.2 -18.4  Real Yield (>5 yrs ILG) -0.25 

Property  1.6 8.1  Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) 4.68 

Hedge Funds  0.8 -2.1  Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 4.82 

Commodities 9.2 -0.4 

High Yield 5.6 3.4 
   

Cash 0.1 0.5 

   
 Absolute Change in Yields 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 

Market Returns 

Bond Assets 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 
 UK Gilts (>15 yrs) -0.5 -1.2 

UK Gilts (>15 yrs) 9.6 26.3  Index-Linked Gilts (>5 yrs) -0.4 -0.7 

Index-Linked Gilts (>5 yrs) 9.8 23.3 Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) -0.4 -0.7 

Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs 

AA) 

6.4 14.2  
Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) -0.2 -0.6 

Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 3.7 12.0     

   

Inflation Indices 
3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 

   

Price Inflation - RPI  0.6 4.8 

 

* is subject to 1 month lag   

Price Inflation - CPI  0.7 4.2     

Earnings Inflation * 0.5 1.9     

Page 21



 

Avon Pension Fund  6 

Economic statistics 

 Quarter to 31 December 2011 Year to 31 December 2011 

 UK Europe(1) US UK Europe(1) US 

Real GDP growth -0.2% 0.7%(2) 2.8% 0.8% 2.0%(2) 1.6% 

Unemployment rate 

Previous 

8.4%(3) 

8.1% 

9.9% 

9.8% 

8.5% 

9.0% 

8.4%(3) 

7.9% 

9.9% 

10.0% 

8.5% 

9.4% 

Inflation change(4) 0.6% 0.8%(3) -0.5%(3) 4.2% 2.7%(3) 3.0%(3) 

Manufacturing 

Purchasing Managers' 

Index  

Previous 

49.6 

 

50.8 

46.9 

 

48.5 

53.1 

 

50.8 

49.6 

 

58.7 

46.9 

 

57.1 

53.1 

 

57.3 

Quantitative Easing (5) 

Previous 

£275bn 

£200bn 

€0 

€0 

$2,654bn 

$2,654bn 

£275bn 

£200bn 

€0 

€0 

$2,654bn 

$2,054bn 

Source: Thomson Reuters, markit, Office for National Statistics, Institute for Supply Management, Eurostat.  All figures to 31 December 

2011 unless otherwise stated.  "Previous" relates to data as at the previous quarter or year end. 

(1) 15 Country Euro area; (2) Figures as at 30 September 2011; (3) Figures as at November 2011; (4) CPI inflation measure; (5) Refers to 

amounts announced and therefore ignores changes due to debt maturing. 

 

Statistical highlights 

• The year on year rate of CPI inflation fell from 5.2% to 4.2% over Q4 2011 and is expected to fall 

further over the coming months.  The Monetary Policy Committee ("MPC") kept interest rates on hold 

at 0.5% throughout the quarter and in October it announced an extension to its policy of quantitative 

easing, increasing the size of its asset purchase programme by £75 billion to a total of £275 billion.  
The programme is expected to be completed in February 2012. 

• According to the British Retail Consortium ("BRC"), UK retail sales were boosted by a Christmas rush 
but retailers reported very different results with Tesco and Argos reporting a fall in UK sales and John 

Lewis and Morrisons reporting a rise.  Stephen Robertson, Director General of the BRC said, "a better 

than hoped-for December closed a relentlessly tough year for retailers, but these figures hinged on a 

dazzling last pre-Christmas week and were boosted by some major one-off factors." 

• The Office for National Statistics ("ONS") confirmed that the number unemployed rose to a 17 year 

high of 2.68m and that the number of people working part-time because they could not find full-time 
jobs had reached a record high.  Unemployment rose by 118,000 between September and November, 

taking the unemployment rate to 8.4%.   

• Interest rates in the Eurozone were reduced from 1.5% to 1.0% over the quarter as the European 

Central Bank ("ECB") reacted to the intensification of the sovereign debt crisis by reducing interest 

rates by 0.25% at both its November and December meetings.  The US Federal Reserve kept interest 

rates on hold at 0.25%.  During the quarter, the US Federal Reserve, the ECB and the central banks 
of the UK, Switzerland, Canada and Japan agreed to provide loans to banks, as it became apparent 

that Europe's banks were struggling to roll over $2 trillion of loans denominated in US Dollars as a 

consequence of liquidity in the interbank markets falling sharply.   

Page 22



 

Avon Pension Fund  7 

• The sovereign debt crisis facing the Eurozone continues to be extremely challenging, both politically 

and economically.  The cost of borrowing for countries such as Italy and Spain remains a political "hot 
potato" because the ECB does not have the power to guarantee bonds issued by member countries or 

be a buyer of 'last resort'; powers that would be expected to limit speculation and reduce Italian and 

Spanish government bond yields. 

• The pound depreciated against the US Dollar and Yen over the quarter but appreciated against the 

Euro.  Concerns about the ongoing crisis in the Eurozone have resulted in the Euro falling to its lowest 

level against the US Dollar for 16 months.   

• The FTSE-All Share Index produced a return over the quarter of 8.4% and European equities 

achieved a return of 3.3%, due to a belief that the markets have priced in the ongoing sovereign debt 
crisis in the Eurozone.  US equities were the strongest performing of the major equity markets 

producing a return of 11.9% as evidence emerged that the economy was growing at a faster rate than 

had been forecast.  The equity markets in the Asia Pacific ex Japan and Emerging Markets regions 

produced returns of 4.4% and 4.2% respectively.  The Japanese equity market produced a return of -
3.6% and was the only major region in which the equity market produced a negative return. 

• The UK gilt market continues to be perceived as a safe haven and long-dated gilt-edged securities 
produced a return of 9.6% over the quarter.  Index-linked gilts achieved a strong return over the 

quarter of 9.8%, whilst long-dated corporate bonds produced a return of 6.4%, despite the prices of 

bonds issued by financial companies continuing to be extremely volatile.   

 

Page 23



 

Avon Pension Fund  8 

Section Three – Fund Valuations 
• The table below shows the asset allocation of the Fund as at 31 December 2011, with the BlackRock 

Multi-Asset portfolio and the BlackRock property portfolio (assets “ring fenced” for investment in 
property) split between the relevant asset classes. 

 
Asset Class 31 December 

2011 

Value 

£'000 

Proportion 

of Total 

% 

Strategic 

Benchmark 

Weight 

% 

UK Equities  484,215 18.5 18.0 

Overseas Equities 1,046,532 39.9 42.0 

Bonds 647,812 24.7 20.0 

Fund of Hedge Funds 209,606 8.0 10.0 

Cash (including currency instruments) 51,198 2.0 - 

Property 194,407 7.4 10.0 

Reconciling differences and rounding -10,914 -0.5 - 

TOTAL FUND VALUE 2,622,856 100.0 100.0 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

 

• The value of the Fund's assets increased by £135m over the final quarter of 2011 to £2,623m, 

resulting from positive absolute investment performance.  Equities were the major contributor given 

their allocation within the Fund and due to returns over the quarter of 8.4% and 7.2% for UK and 

overseas equities in particular.  Long dated gilts (+9.6%) and index-linked gilts (+9.8%) were also 
positive contributors. 

• In terms of asset allocation, there have been a number of changes over the quarter: 

− There was an increase in the holdings with RLAM.  This completed in December and is a 

tactical holding to take advantage of the spread on yields between corporate bonds and 
UK gilts.  This was funded by a  disinvestment from the UK gilt allocation within the 

BlackRock Multi-Asset portfolio..   

− There was some further funding of property investment with Partners over the quarter, 

funded by a drawdown from the funds set aside to invest in property. 

• The valuation of the investment with each manager is provided on the following page. 

Page 24



 

Avon Pension Fund  9 

 
30 September 2011 31 December 2011 

Manager Asset Class 
Value 

 

£'000 

Proportion 

of Total 

% 

Net new 

money 

£'000 

Value 

 

£'000 

Proportion 

of Total 

% 

Jupiter UK Equities  99,784 4.0 - 106,118 4.0 

TT International UK Equities 113,368 4.6 - 125,396 4.8 

Invesco Global ex-UK 
Equities 149,203 6.0 - 159,421 6.1 

Schroder Global Equities 122,025 4.9 - 129,764 4.9 

SSgA Europe ex-UK 
Equities and 
Pacific incl. 
Japan Equities 

77,595 3.1 

- 

79,401 3.0 

Genesis Emerging 
Market Equities 121,308 4.9 - 127,334 4.9 

MAN Fund of Hedge 
Funds 64,657 2.6 - 62,441 2.4 

Signet Fund of Hedge 
Funds 63,366 2.5 - 63,048 2.4 

Stenham Fund of Hedge 
Funds 33,283 1.3 - 32,717 1.2 

Gottex Fund of Hedge 
Funds 51,603 2.1 - 51,399 2.0 

BlackRock Passive Multi-
asset 1,180,349 47.4 -81,070 1,185,907 45.1 

BlackRock 
(property fund) 

Equities, 
Futures, Bonds, 
Cash (held for 
property inv) 

73,847 3.0 -3,745 75,350 2.9 

RLAM Bonds 135,155 5.4 81,070 220,765 8.4 

Schroder UK Property 128,641 5.2 - 128,107 4.9 

Partners Property 63,606 2.6 3,745 67,180 2.6 

Record Currency 
Mgmt 

 -4,754 -0.2 - -6,383 -0.2 

Internal Cash Cash 14,105 0.6 - 14,891 0.6 

Rounding  1 0.0 - 0 0.0 

TOTAL  2,487,961 100.0 0 2,622,856 100.0 

Source: Avon Pension Fund, Data provided by WM Performance Services.  From Q2 2011, Partners valuation will be 
lagged by one quarter.  

Page 25



 

Avon Pension Fund  10 

Section Four – Performance Summary 
Total Fund performance 

• The chart below shows the absolute performance of the total Fund’s assets over the last 3 years. 

Total Fund absolute and relative performance 

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Quarterly Return Quarterly Relative Return

Rolling 3 year return (%p.a.) Rolling 3 year benchmark return (%p.a.)
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 
 

• Over the last quarter (blue bars) the total Fund's assets produced a return of 5.7%, underperforming 

the customised benchmark by0.4% (this analysis excludes the impact of currency hedging). 

• Over the last year (not shown above) the total Fund's assets produced a return of -0.2%, 

underperforming the customised benchmark by 0.9% (this analysis excludes the impact of currency 
hedging). 

 

Strategy performance 

• The table on the next page shows the strategic allocation to each of the major asset classes and the 

benchmark returns over the quarter and year to 31 December 2011. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



 

Avon Pension Fund  11 

 

Asset Class Weight in 
Strategic 

Benchmark 

Q4 2011               
(index returns) 

1 year                
(index returns) 

  UK Equities 18% 8.4% -3.5% 

  Overseas Equities 42% 7.2% -6.9% 

  Index Linked Gilts 6% 8.4% 19.9% 

  Fixed Coupon Gilts 6% 5.0% 15.6% 

  UK Corporate Bonds* 5% 3.1% 5.4% 

  Overseas Fixed Interest 3% 0.0% 7.4% 

  Fund of Hedge Funds** 10% 0.8% -2.1% 

  Property 10% 1.6% 8.1% 

 Total Fund 100%   
Source: Avon Pension Fund, Data provided by WM Performance Services.  *Please note that this is an 'all 
maturities' index return and so differ from the 'long maturities' index returns shown on the Market 
Background page in Section Two.  **The returns are based on the managers' targets rather then a hedge 
fund or fund of fund index.  The property and overseas equity indices also differ slightly from those in Section 
Two. 

 

• Market impact: despite continued uncertainty regarding the Eurozone and Euro, markets produced 
positive returns following improving economic data from the US and some optimism over a resolution 

in Europe. 

• UK and overseas equity markets produced returns of 8.4% and 7.2% respectively.   

• Sterling weakened against the US Dollar and the Yen over the quarter, meaning a higher return on the 
US Dollar and Yen denominated overseas equities in sterling terms.  Sterling appreciated against the 

Euro, meaning a lower return on the Euro denominated overseas equities in sterling terms.   

• Bonds generally produced strong positive returns.  Longer dated gilts and index-linked gilts produced 

the highest returns, reflecting the expectation of a prolonged period of low interest rates.  Spreads on 

corporate bonds widened but absolute performance was still positive. 

• The allocations to fund of hedge funds and property continue to provide more steady returns, as 

evidenced by the one year returns, but were a drag relative to equities over the quarter. 

• Strategic Benchmark performance: the strategy return was driven by the two largest components, 

UK (18%) and overseas (42%) equities, contributing approximately 1.5% and 3.0% respectively to the 

strategic benchmark return (ignoring the impact of currency hedging). 

• UK Gilts (6% benchmark weight) and UK Index-Linked Gilts (6%) both contributed approximately 0.6% 

each. 

• Asset allocation: a small underweight allocation to equities at the start of the quarter had a slight 

detrimental impact on returns.  Whilst the asset allocation is broadly in line with target, property 
continues to be underweight as the funding of these portfolio is an on-going process.   

• Market movements have meant that there is an overweight position to bonds and an underweight 
position to fund of hedge funds.  This has been a positive contributor to returns over the quarter. 

• A tactical switch of approximately 3% of total Fund assets was made from gilts to corporate bonds at 
the end of the quarter. 

Page 27



 

Avon Pension Fund  12 

• Overall these effects did not have a large impact on relative performance, with much of the 

underperformance over the quarter being due to managers underperforming their benchmarks. 

• The chart below shows the 3 year absolute return (“Annual Absolute Return”) against the 3 year 

volatility of absolute returns (“Annual Risk”), based on monthly/quarterly (as available) data points in 
sterling terms, to the end of December 2011 of each of the underlying asset benchmarks, along with 

the total Fund strategic benchmark. 

• This chart can be compared to the 3 year risk vs return managers' chart on page 15, showing that 

actual total Fund performance was more volatile than the benchmark total Fund Performance, due to 

greater volatility from some of the equity portfolios, the fund of hedge fund portfolios and RLAM 

compared to their respective benchmarks. 

                                       3 Year Risk v 3 Year Return to 31 December 2011 

Overseas Equities

Property

Gilts

Index Linked Gilts

Corporate Bonds

Overseas Bonds

UK Equities

Fund of Hedge Funds 
(HFRI FoF 

Conservative Index)

Total Fund

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Annual Risk

A
nn

ua
l A

b
so

lu
te

 R
et

ur
n

 
Source: Thomson Reuters.  Please note, the Fund of Hedge Funds return does not include the cost of hedging currency. 
 

• All of the underlying benchmarks have produced a positive return over the period. 

• Changes to the previous quarter are driven by the impact of Q4 2008 falling out of the analysis and 

being replaced by Q4 2011. 

• This has resulted in a significant increase in the return for equities (over 5% for UK equities) and a fall 

in volatility (annual risk), particularly for overseas equities.  The return on index-linked gilts has also 

increased by a similar margin. 

• The largest fall in return is from overseas bonds.  The return over the 3 year period has also fallen for 

property. 

• Overall, the Total Fund return has increased compared to last quarter and this has been generated at 

a lower level of risk.  The position of the various asset classes is broadly as expected, although the 
volatility of gilts is higher than expected and has been caused by the large changes in yields 

experienced over the period. 

 

 

Page 28



 

Avon Pension Fund  13 

Aggregate manager performance 

• The charts below show the absolute return for each manager over the quarter and the year to the end 

of December 2011.  The relative quarter and one year returns are marked with green and blue dots 

respectively.   

• Please note Partner’s returns and values are lagged by a quarter. Due to timing issues there is a 

query, which at the time of printing has still to be resolved.  

 
Absolute and relative performance - quarter to 31 December 2011 

 

-6.00%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

Returns Relative
 

 
Absolute and relative performance - year to 31 December 2011 

 

-20.00%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

Returns Relative
 

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 
 

• Jupiter and TT both produced positive absolute returns over the quarter.  However, Jupiter 
underperformed its benchmark whereas TT outperformed their benchmark.  Over the 1 year period, 

both managers produced negative absolute returns.  Jupiter outperformed their benchmark whereas 
TT underperformed their benchmark. 

• Within overseas equities, all managers produced positive absolute performance over the quarter.  
SSgA Europe and SSgA Pacific marginally outperformed their respective benchmarks.  Genesis 

outperformed their benchmark.  Invesco underperformed their benchmark over the quarter.   

Page 29



 

Avon Pension Fund  14 

• Disappointingly, the Fund's fund of hedge fund managers produced negative returns over the quarter 

and therefore underperformed their benchmarks.  Absolute and relative performance was also 
negative over the year although returns were generally ahead of the equity managers. 

• RLAM produced a positive return over the quarter, and marginally outperformed its benchmark.  Over 
the 1 year period, performance was positive in absolute and relative terms. 

• The property portfolio outperformed over the year, due to consistent positive returns from both 
Schroder and Partners, although over the quarter Partners underperformed the benchmark. 

• Over the quarter the combined effect of the managers' performance was expected to have detracted 
approximately 0.4%. 

 

Manager and total Fund risk v return 

• The chart below shows the 1 year absolute return (“Annual Absolute Return”) against the 1 year 

volatility of absolute returns (“Annual Risk”), based on monthly/quarterly (as available) data points in 

sterling terms, to the end of December 2011 of each of the funds, along with the total Fund.   

 
                                       1 Year Risk v 1 Year Return to 31 December 2011 

Total fund

Jupiter

TT Int.
Invesco

SS Euro

SS Pac. Genesis

MAN

Signet
Stenham

Gottex

BlackRock 
Multi-Asset

BlackRock2

RLAM

Int. Cash

Schroder Property

Partners

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%
Annual Risk

A
nn

ua
l A

bs
ol

ut
e 

R
et

ur
n

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services  

 

• The managers are colour coded by asset class, as follows: 

- Green: UK equities - Blue: overseas equities 

- Red: fund of hedge funds - Black: bonds 

- Maroon: multi-asset - Brown: BlackRock No. 2 portfolio 

- Grey: internally managed cash - Pink: Property 

- Green Square: total Fund  

 

Page 30



 

Avon Pension Fund  15 

• The key changes from the previous quarter are an increase in risk for the equity portfolio, particularly 

TT International and the SSgA Europe portfolio, and a fall in returns from the fund of hedge fund 
managers. 

• The Total Fund return has not changed significantly. 

 

• The chart below shows the annualised 3 year absolute return (“Annual Absolute Return”) against the 3 

year annualised volatility of absolute returns (“Annual Risk”), based on monthly/quarterly (as available) 

data points in sterling terms, to the end of December 2011 of each of the funds, along with the total 
Fund.   

 
                                       3 Year Risk v 3 Year Return to 31 December 2011 
 

Total fund

Jupiter

TT Int.

Invesco

SS Euro

SS Pac.

Genesis

MAN

Signet
Stenham

Gottex

BlackRock 
Multi-Asset

BlackRock2

RLAM

Int. Cash0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%
Annual Risk

A
nn

ua
l A

bs
ol

ut
e 

R
et

ur
n

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services  
 

• The managers are colour coded by asset class, as follows: 

- Green: UK equities - Blue: overseas equities 

- Red: fund of hedge funds - Black: bonds 

- Maroon: multi-asset - Brown: BlackRock No. 2 portfolio 

- Grey: internally managed cash - Green Square: total Fund 

 

• Genesis has seen an improvement in the return whilst also experiencing a reduction in risk.  This is 

also applicable to the returns from Jupiter.  Returns from TT have increased whilst risk  has remained 

similar to last quarter.  The SSgA Pacific Fund has seen a marginal decrease in the level of risk 
coupled with a decrease in the return. 

• There has been little change to the annual risk for either BlackRock portfolio; however, the returns 
have increased.  RLAM has also seen little change. 

• Despite a poor Q4 2011, the returns from Fund of Hedge Funds have increased and the risk reduced. 

• Compared to the one year chart, many of the returns are still positive, albeit exhibiting higher volatility. 

Page 31



 

Avon Pension Fund  16 

Section Five – Individual Manager Performance 
• This section provides a one page summary of the key risk and return characteristics for each 

investment manager.  An explanatory summary of each of the charts is included in the Glossary in 
Appendix A, with a reference for each chart in the chart title (e.g. #1).  A summary of mandates is 

included in Appendix B, which shows the benchmark and outperformance target for each fund. 

 

Key points for consideration 

• We have not identified any significant issues with the performance of the active investment managers 

and have no concerns with investment into any of the active managers for rebalancing purposes.  We 
include a qualitative assessment of the Schroder global unconstrained equity manager, implemented 

in Q2 2011.  New investment with Jupiter should continue to be subject to discussion whilst the review 
of the Fund's policy to SRI and ESG issues is under review. 

• UK and global equity funds:   

− Jupiter underperformed their benchmark over the quarter by 2.0%.   

− TT International outperformed its benchmark over the quarter, however underperformed 
over the one year to 31 December 2011.  The Fund continues to be overweight in Consumer 

Services and Basic Materials, with underweight positions to Financials. 

− The newly appointed unconstrained global equity manager, Schroder, produced a positive 

absolute return over the quarter, however the portfolio underperformed the benchmark.     

• Non-UK Enhanced Indexation Funds:  The SSgA Europe ex UK Fund and the SSgA Pacific incl. 

Japan equity fund both marginally outperformed their respective benchmarks.  Performance over the 
one year was also positive in relative terms for both of the SSgA Enhanced Indexation funds but 

negative in absolute terms.   

• Enhanced Indexation:  Invesco underperformed its benchmark over the quarter by 0.8%, although 

performance was positive in absolute terms.  Over the one year performance was ahead of the 
benchmark by 0.9%.  Performance over the 3 years was positive in absolute and relative terms.  We 

note however that Invesco's relative performance can be affected by 'timing' differences in the pricing 
of their Fund compared to their benchmark and therefore the longer term returns are more informative. 

• Emerging Markets: Genesis outperformed their benchmark over the quarter.  Performance over the 
longer 1 and 3 year periods also remains positive in relative terms. 

• Fund of Hedge Funds:  

− Man produced a negative relative return of -5.0%, producing an absolute return of -3.4%.   

− Signet produced a negative relative return over the quarter, underperforming their 
benchmark by 1.5%.  In absolute terms, Signet produced a return of -0.5%. 

− Stenham Asset Management produced a negative relative return for the quarter, 2.7% 
behind their benchmark, with an absolute return of -1.7%.     

− Gottex produced the highest absolute return of all the fund of hedge fund managers, but still 
underperformed their benchmark over the quarter by 1.4%, producing an absolute return of -

0.4%.   

− All four funds produced negative absolute and relative returns over the year in what was a 

tough year for hedge funds.   

Page 32



 

Avon Pension Fund  17 

• BlackRock passive Funds:  there is nothing unusual arising in risk and performance for the two 

BlackRock passive portfolios.  Both passive funds produced positive absolute returns over the quarter 
and performed in line with their respective benchmarks. 

• Fixed Interest:  RLAM outperformed the benchmark in the last quarter by 0.4%.  In absolute terms, 
RLAM produced a return of 2.7%.  There are no notable changes in the risk profile of this fund.   

• Property:  Performance of the Schroder property fund over the quarter was positive in absolute and 
relative terms.  Over the 1 year period, the Schroder property fund produced a performance of 8.1% 

which was ahead of the benchmark by 1.2%.  The performance of Partners is now lagged by 1 

quarter.  As such, over the third quarter of 2011, Partners underperformed their benchmark by 0.6%, 

producing an absolute return of 0.7%.  Once a 3 year track record is available for a meaningful 
proportion of the Fund's commitment with Partners, a fuller quantitative assessment will be available.  

For the time being, a qualitative assessment is included for this manager, as such details are not 

provided in the charts following. 

 

Page 33



 

Avon Pension Fund  18 

Jupiter Asset Management – UK Equities (Socially Responsible Investing) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-12.0%

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-15.0%

-12.0%

-9.0%

-6.0%

-3.0%

0.0%

3.0%

6.0%

9.0%

12.0%

15.0%

Quarterly relat ive return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right  axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)  

Performance v fund size #3 

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  ax i s ) P'f ol i o qtr l y excess  r et ur n ( l ef t  ax i s )

1 σ i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qtr 2 σ i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r
 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11 Sep

11

Dec

11

-1.2

-1.0

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

T ur nover  (%) [ r i ght  axi s]

T r ac ki ng Er r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  axi s]
Inf or mat i on Rat i o -  r ol l i ng 3 y ear  (t i mes)  [ r i ght  axi s ]  

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Jupiter 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 2.0%, 
producing an absolute return of 6.4%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 2.0%, producing an 
absolute return of -1.5%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund outperformed the benchmark 
by 0.5% p.a., producing an absolute return of 
13.4% p.a. There has been a substantial 
change in the 3 year returns per annum 
compared to previous quarter primarily 
because the weak performance from Q4 
2008 (-18.7%) falling out of the 3 year 
calculations. 

• The Fund's allocation to Cash (6.3%) 
decreased marginally compared to the 
preceding quarter (6.5%). 

 

 

• Jupiter's approach means that they will be 
underweight to certain industries relative to 
the benchmark (tobacco and mining, for 
example).  Together with a bearish view on 
banks, this means they are significantly 
underweight to large cap stocks and also 
have a concentration in other sectors.  
Performance is therefore likely to be 
volatile relative to benchmark but this is a 
function of the mandate rather than a 
concern with Jupiter's management style.  

• A high allocation to cash represents a 
defensive view and is understandable in 
the current economic environment.  
However, it will lead to underperformance 
during periods of market rallies, such as 
Q4 2011. 

 

Page 34



 

Avon Pension Fund  19 

TT International – UK Equities (Unconstrained) 

 

Relative returns #1  

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-30.0%

-20.0%

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

Quarterly relat ive return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right  axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Performance v fund size #3 

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

£m

Fund size (r ight  axis) P'f olio qt r ly excess return (lef t  axis)
 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4  

-50%
-40%
-30%
-20%
-10%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun

11

Sep

11

Dec

11

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

Turnover 
Tracking Error -  rolling 3 year (% p.a.)
Informat ion Rat io - rol ling 3 year  (t imes)  

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and TT International 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 2.1%, producing an 
absolute return of 10.5%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 1.9%, producing an 
absolute return of -5.4%.  Over the last three 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 1.4% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of 11.5% p.a. 

• The Fund has an overweight position in 
Consumer Services and Telecommunications 
by 4.7% and 2.7% respectively, and is 
significantly underweight to Financials by 
9.5%. 

• Turnover, over the fourth quarter, has fallen 
back to around the 25% mark as compared to 
the spike the previous quarter when it 
increased to approximately 33%. 

• The 3 year tracking error (proxy for risk) has 
remained broadly consistent over the last few 
quarters.  The 3 year information ratio (risk 
adjusted return), continued to improve very 
slightly from -0.5% to -0.4%. 

 
 

 

• After a difficult 12 months to end Q3 2011, 
Q4 2011 has provided an improved 
relative return, but longer term 
performance is still behind benchmark. 

• TT's approach dictates high (relative to 
other equity portfolios) turnover and this 
has been seen in their activity over the 
quarter. 

• TT have acknowledged the uncertain 
conditions and expect them to continue, 
but believe there are opportunities to 
outperform, particularly where shares or 
sectors appear oversold. 

• TT are taking active positions in sectors 
and individual stocks, as expected given 
their approach. 

• Care should be taken to ensure looking for 
"cheap" stocks does not lead to buying 
poor quality stocks, although this does not 
appear to be the case as evidenced by 
significant underweight to financials, 
where they believe significant headwinds 
remain. 

 

 

Page 35



 

Avon Pension Fund  20 

Schroder – Global Equity Portfolio (Unconstrained) 

• The mandate awarded to Schroder by the Fund commenced in April 2011. 

• The Fund appointed Schroder to manage Global Equities on a segregated basis.  The Manager's 

portfolio objective is to outperform the benchmark, the MSCI All Countries World Index, by 4% per 
annum over a rolling three year period.   

• In order to achieve the objective, the investment approach is designed to add value relative to the 
benchmark through stock selection and sector allocation decisions.   

• Due to the short period since inception, we provide here a qualitative update and assessment of the 
manager.   

 

Portfolio update and performance over Q4 2011 

The fund underperformed its benchmark by 1.1%, producing an absolute return of 6.5% over the quarter.  

 

The final quarter of 2011 saw equities markets produce positive absolute returns however; these were not 
strong enough to outweigh negative returns from earlier in the year.  As such over the 2011 calendar year, 

global equities posted negative returns.   

 

Whilst markets had somewhat regained their appetite for risk in October, political and economic turmoil 
continued throughout the Eurozone.  There remains some scepticism regarding the outcome of any 

negotiations to stave off a default of Greece.  There was some encouraging news from the US toward the 
end of the quarter regarding their economic data, which helped equity returns.   

 

Whilst the fund produced a positive return, it did underperform its benchmark.  There were positive 

contributions from the information technology sector, which includes names such as Google and Samsung.  
Samsung was boosted by continued demand for their smartphones sales.   

 

The main detractors from relative returns for the fund came from the consumer sectors.  Within consumer 

staples, it was Diamond Foods driving the underperformance.  The company suffered severely following 
news that there would be an investigation into their accounting by an internal audit committee.  Their planned 

acquisition of Pringles from L&G is likely to suffer a long delay as a result.  Schroder consequently sold this 
position in the portfolio.   

 

In terms of the regional exposure in the fund, stock selection and an underweight position to Japan was 

beneficial to the fund's performance.  The underweight position was 3.2% less than the benchmark 
exposure.  UK financials and materials was the main contributor adding value to relative performance, with 

Prudential doing particularly well. 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

Avon Pension Fund  21 

North America and Pacific ex Japan were the areas that were the main detractors to relative performance.  

The Fund is underweight to North America relative to the benchmark by 4.6% and overweight to Pacific ex 
Japan by 2.3%.  Within North America the main underperformer was Diamond Foods.  Energy was also 

negative in this region.  Newcrest Mining was a key detractor in the Pacific region; the company suffered 

from adverse weather conditions, which caused an announcement that there would be a short-term 

production shortfall. 

 

The most underweight country weightings in the portfolio are North America (-4.6%) and Japan (-3.2%).  The 

portfolio is overweight to the Emerging Markets (+2.9%) and Pacific ex Japan (+2.3%).   

 

In terms of sector weightings, the most underweight positions are to Telecoms (-2.9%), Utilities (-2.1%) and 

material (-0.9%).  Overweight positions are in Consumer Staples (+3.5%), Consumer Discretionary (+1.8%) 

and Information Technology (+0.9%). 

 

Conclusion 

The Schroder global equity portfolio has been implemented for a very short space of time over an extremely 
turbulent period.  It is therefore too early to draw any firm conclusions regarding Schroder's performance.  

The portfolio is diversified by both country and sector and we remain confident that Schroder has a robust 

investment philosophy which is being adhered to.   

 

Given the outperformance target of the portfolio and the relatively unconstrained approach, it is expected 

that relative returns will vary over time.  The returns to date should therefore not be of concern.  The portfolio 

is taking an active view on stocks, sectors and regions which will be required both to meet its 

outperformance objective and to fulfil its philosophy. 

Page 37



 

Avon Pension Fund  22 

Genesis Asset Managers – Emerging Market Equities 

 

Relative returns #1 

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-30.0%

-15.0%

0.0%

15.0%

30.0%

45.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-5.0%

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)  

Performance v fund size #3 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

Sep-

11

Dec-

11

0

500
1,000

1,500
2,000

2,500

3,000
3,500

4,000
4,500

5,000

£m

P or tf ol i o val ue (r i ght  ax i s ) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess  r etur n (l ef t  ax i s )

1 σ i n 3 y r  excess  r et ur n per  qt r 2 σ i n 3 yr  excess  r et ur n per  qtr

 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11 Sep

11

Dec

11

-0.8
-0.6
-0.4
-0.2
0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4

T ur nover  (r i ght  ax i s )

T r acki ng er r or  - 3 year  r ol l i ng (% p.a.) [ l ef t  axi s ]
Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  ( t i mes ) [ r i ght  axi s]  

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Genesis 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.3%, producing an 
absolute return of 5.0%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund outperformed its 
benchmark by 2.6%, producing an absolute 
return of -14.9%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund outperformed the benchmark by 5.5% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 22.8% 
p.a. 

• The Fund remains overweight to South Africa 
and India, and underweight Brazil, South 
Korea and China.  The underweight position 
in China is maintained, although this is partly 
due to the restrictions on non-local investors.  
Please note that the over and underweight's 
are a result of Genesis' stock picking 
approach, rather than taking a view on 
countries.  

 

 

• The allocation to Cash (1.1%) increased 
marginally compared to the previous 
quarter (0.9%). 

• On an industry basis, the Fund is now 
overweight Consumer Staples (+6.7%), 
Healthcare (+2.6%) and Financials 
(+1.0%).  The Fund is underweight to 
Consumer Discretionary   (-5.2%), Energy 
(-3.9%) and Telecom Services (-2.4%).   

• Genesis have consistently added value 
relative to the benchmark, including over 
the most recent period which was difficult 
for equities and particularly so for 
emerging markets. 

• The tracking error has fallen slightly and 
remains well below levels seen in 2009.  
This could be viewed as Genesis looking 
to protect the outperformance achieved 
over the past few years but, more 
significantly, it is impressive that they have 
managed to outperform in an environment 
that is significantly different (within 
Emerging markets) to the period over 
which previous outperformance was 
attained. 

• The reduction in risk should therefore not 
be of concern at this stage. 

 

Page 38



 

Avon Pension Fund  23 

 

Invesco – Global ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-16.0%

-12.0%

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

16.0%

20.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-5.0%

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)

 
Performance v fund size #3 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%
-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%
2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

Sep-

11

Dec-

11

0

50

100

150

200

250

£m

Fund s i ze (r i ght ax i s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  ax i s )

+/ -  1 σ i n 3 yr  excess r et ur n per  qt r +/ -  2 σ i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r

 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0.0%

0.2%
0.4%

0.6%

0.8%
1.0%

1.2%

1.4%
1.6%

1.8%

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun

11

Sep

11

Dec

11

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

Turnover ( right  axis)
Tracking Error - roll ing 3 year (% p.a.)  [ lef t  axis]
Inf ormat ion Rat io -  rolling 3 year  (t imes) [ right  axis]

 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Invesco 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed its benchmark by 0.8%, 
producing an absolute return of 6.9%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund outperformed its 
benchmark by 0.9%, producing an absolute 
return of -4.3%.  Over three years, the Fund 
outperformed, by 1.1% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of 9.0% p.a. 

• Over the last quarter, all strategies continued 
to be positive contributors except for Sector 
selection.  The timing of the pricing of the 
Fund versus the benchmark also remains a 
factor in respect of short term relative 
performance. 

 

• The turnover for this quarter of 11.2% 
decreased from 12.3% in the previous 
quarter.  The number of stocks, however, 
marginally rose from 399 to 401. 

• The industry allocation is relatively in line 
with the benchmark industry allocations.  
All industry allocations were broadly within 
+/- 1.0% of benchmark weightings as 
expected from this mandate. 

• Quarterly relative returns can be affected 
by timing issues between pricing the fund 
units versus the benchmark. Therefore 
longer term performance is a more reliable 
indicator of whether Invesco are meeting 
their long term objective. 

 

Page 39



 

Avon Pension Fund  24 

SSgA – Europe ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-18.0%

-12.0%

-6.0%

0.0%

6.0%

12.0%

18.0%

24.0%

30.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]  

Monthly relative returns #2 

-1.0%
-0.8%

-0.6%
-0.4%

-0.2%
0.0%

0.2%
0.4%

0.6%
0.8%

1.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)

 
Performance v fund size #3 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

M ar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 M ar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 M ar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

0

200

400

600

800

£m

Fund s i ze (r i ght  ax i s ) P 'f ol i o qtr l y excess  r etur n (l ef t  ax i s)

1 σ i n 3 yr  excess  r et ur n per  qt r 2 σ i n 3 y r  excess  r etur n per  qtr  

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11 Sep

11

Dec

11

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

T ur nover  p.a. appr ox (r i ght  ax is )

T r ack i ng E r r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  ax i s]

I nf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  axi s ]  
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and SSgA 

Comments:  

• Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.1%, producing an 
absolute return of 3.7%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.2%, producing an absolute 
return of -14.4%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund outperformed the benchmark by 1% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 3.4% 
p.a. 

• The pooled fund fell in size from 
£306.12million as at 31 March 2011, to 
£46.85million as at 30 June 2011. In the third 
quarter, it fell further to £30.34million.  In the 
forth quarter, however, there has been a 
marginal increase of £1.1million compared to 
the previous quarter's fund size.  These 
changes do not appear to have affected 
performance. 

 

 

• The volatility of monthly relative returns 
has remained in the narrower band 
experienced since Q1 2010.   As an 
enhanced indexation fund the magnitude 
of the volatility is expected to be very low 
and the current level is more appropriate 
than seen previously. 

• Turnover has continued to remain 
consistent over the last 3 years while the 
number of stocks marginally increased 
over the quarter.  The tracking error has 
decreased very marginally over the last 
quarter.      

• A period of small consistent 
outperformance has seen a pleasing 
increase in the information ratio.  This 
fund is not expected to provide shocks 
relative to the benchmark and therefore 
current risk levels are appropriate. 

• As concerns over the rapid change in size 
of the fund recede, it can be considered 
suitable for new contributions or suitable 
for investment if rebalancing is required, 
although it should be discussed in 
advance with SSgA if the amount is 
significant relative to the size of the fund. 

Page 40



 

Avon Pension Fund  25 

SSgA – Pacific incl. Japan Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-16.0%

-12.0%

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

16.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-1.5%
-1.2%

-0.9%
-0.6%
-0.3%
0.0%

0.3%
0.6%
0.9%

1.2%
1.5%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Performance v fund size #3 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

0

40

80

120

160

200

£m

Fund s i ze (r i ght ax i s ) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess  r etur n (l ef t  ax i s )

1 σ i n 3 y r  excess  r et ur n per  qt r 2 σ i n 3 yr  excess  r et ur n per  qtr

 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4  

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11 Sep

11

Dec

11

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

T ur nover  (r i ght  axi s )

T r ack i ng Er r or  -  r ol l i ng 3 y ear  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  axi s]

Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  ax i s]  
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and SSgA 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.2%, producing an 
absolute return of 1.3%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.4%, producing an absolute 
return of -12.2%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund outperformed the benchmark by 0.3% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 6.7% 
p.a. 

 

 

• Turnover has remained consistent over 
the last three years, which is what is 
expected of this style of investment 
management.   

• Tracking error has fallen over the year and 
significantly so over the last quarter.  
Performance has pleasingly been as 
expected and the small consistent levels 
of outperformance have led to a increase 
in the information ratio.  However, it should 
be monitored carefully as to whether there 
is a reduction in relative returns due to the 
reduction in risk. 

• Despite this slight concern, this fund is 
suitable for new contributions or suitable 
for investment if rebalancing is required.   

 

  

Page 41



 

Avon Pension Fund  26 

MAN – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-25.0%

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-25.0%

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar-10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

Long shor t Shor t sel l i ng A r bi tr age

Di s t r essed Commodi t i es M ul t i -s tr ategi es RV

Spec i al  Si tuat i ons Gl obal  T r adi ng Ot her

Por t f ol i o r etur n  

Correlation with indices #7 

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%

-5%
0%

5%
10%

15%
20%

25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f ol io ret urn - quarterly 

Benchmark

Cash Global Equi t ies Non Gi lt s All  St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and MAN 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 5.0%, 
producing an absolute return of -3.4%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 12.7%, producing an 
absolute return of -6.1%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 4.8% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of 1.9% p.a. 

• The key drivers of the negative performance 
were the allocations to Systematic Long Term 
Trend, Long / Short Emerging Markets and 
Commodities.   

• There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts as a 
good diversifier to the Avon Pension Fund's 
other asset classes. 

 

 

• The Fund continues to hold a diverse 
exposure to hedge fund strategies, with 
the largest allocations to Long / Short and 
Commodities strategies, making up 61.6% 
of the fund. 

• MAN's performance relative to the other 
fund of hedge fund managers is not 
unexpected in a tough environment for 
hedge fund strategies - as the manager 
with the highest outperformance target it is 
expected to take the highest levels of risk. 

• However, the contribution from its long / 
short strategies is disappointing during a 
quarter of positive equity returns (long / 
short tends to be net long), albeit not 
unusual compared to other long short 
managers. 

• MAN has continued to reduce the number 
of managers within the strategy which 
should, over the longer term, allow a 
greater chance of meeting its 
outperformance objective, subject of 
course to successful manager selection. 

Page 42



 

Avon Pension Fund  27 

Signet – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]  

Monthly relative returns #2  

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6  

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

M ar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 M ar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 M ar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

Conver t i bl e A r bi t r age Di st r es s Sec ur i ti es E vent  Dr i ven

Fi xed I ncome A r bi tr age Gl obal  M acr o Other

M ul t i s tr ategy Long-Shor t  Cr edi t P or t f ol i o r etur n

 

Correlation with indices #7  

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%

-5%
0%

5%
10%

15%
20%

25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly (%)

Benchmark 

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Signet 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 1.5%, 
producing an absolute return of -0.5%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 8.4%, producing an 
absolute return of -4.5%.  Over the 3 year 
period, the Fund outperformed the benchmark 
by 0.5% p.a., producing an absolute return of 
4.4% p.a. There has been a substantial 
change in the 3 year returns per annum 
compared to previous quarters primarily 
because the weak performance from Q4 2008 
(-10.8%) falling out of the 3 year calculations. 

• All strategies contributed positively except for 
the Volatility Arbitrage strategy, Emerging 
Market strategy and Convertible Arbitrage 
strategy, which pulled total portfolio absolute 
returns into negative territory. 

 

 

• There is no clear correlation between 
this Fund and cash, global equities or 
non gilt bonds.  This suggests that this 
Fund acts as a good diversifier to the 
Avon Pension Fund's other asset 
classes. 

• Relative to other hedge fund managers, 
Signet’s performance was more positive 
in terms of minimising drawdown and 
managing risk. 

 
 

Page 43



 

Avon Pension Fund  28 

Stenham – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

- 4 %

- 3 %

- 2 %

- 1%

0 %

1%

2 %

3 %

4 %

5 %

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

Event  Driven Global Macro Long/shor t  Equit y
Relat ive Value Long Volat il it y Port folio ret urn  

Correlation with indices #7  

-25%
-20%
-15%

-10%
-5%
0%
5%

10%

15%
20%
25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio return -  quar ter ly 

Benchmark

Cash Global Equi t ies Non Gi lt s All  St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Stenham 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 2.7%, 
producing an absolute return of -1.7%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 8.2%, producing an 
absolute return of -4.3%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 2.7% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of 1.2% p.a. 

• Global Macro and Relative value strategies 
were the largest detractors over the quarter.  
The only positive contributor to performance 
came from Event Driven Strategies.  

 

• The allocation to the Global Macro and 
Long / Short Equity strategies made up 
65.0% of the total Fund allocation.  The 
allocation to Cash decreased from 8.0% 
to 6.0% over the quarter. 

• There is no clear correlation between 
this Fund and cash, global equities or 
non gilt bonds.  This suggests that this 
Fund acts as a good diversifier to the 
Avon Pension Fund's other asset 
classes. 

• Volatility of returns have generally been 
lower than the other fund of hedge fund 
managers, which is as expected given 
Stenham's focus on liquidity and capital 
preservation. 

 

Page 44



 

Avon Pension Fund  29 

Gottex – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-25.0%

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-25.0%

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]  

Monthly relative returns #2  

-12.0%

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

-5%
-4%

-3%
-2%
-1%
0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

Con ver t ible Arbit rage Opt ion s Ar bit r age M BS St rat egies

Fixed I ncome Arbit rage Cr edit  Ar bit r age Ot her  Relat ive Value

Lon g- Shor t  Cr edit Asset  Backed Secur it ies Closed- En d Fun d Arbit rage

M er ger  Arbit rage Dist ressed Secur it ies Asset - Based Len din g

Pr ivat e Placemen t  Ar bit rage Capit al St ruct ur e Arbit rage Quan t it at ive M N Equit y

Fun damen t al M N Equit y Lon g- Shor t  Equit y Even t  Dr iven  Equit y

Fut ures St r at egies Discret ion ary M acr o Ot her  

Correlation with indices #7 

-25%
-20%
-15%
-10%
-5%
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

Por t f olio ret urn - quar t er ly

Benchmark

Cash Global  Equit ies Non Gilt s All  St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Gottex 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 1.4%, 
producing an absolute return of -0.4%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 5.9%, producing an 
absolute return of -2.0%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund outperformed the benchmark 
by 0.9% p.a., producing an absolute return of 
4.8% p.a. 

• The Fund generated a negative return during 
the quarter. This was primarily led by Options 
Arbitrage strategies, Asset-Backed Securities 
and Asset based investing strategies.  
Negative performance was marginally offset 
by positive contribution from Mortgage 
Backed Securities and Fixed Income 
Arbitrage.    

 

• The Fund has a diverse range of strategy 
exposures, with continued major 
exposures to MBS, ABS and Fundamental 
MN Equity Strategies.  Allocations to 
Options Arbitrage strategies increased by 
2.1% to 7.0% over the quarter while 
allocations to Fundamental MN Equity and 
Convertible Arbitrage strategies fell by 
1.3% and 1.0% respectively.  

• There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts 
as a good diversifier to the Avon Pension 
Fund's other asset classes. 

• Gottex performance continues to be 
significantly less volatile than several 
years prior, as expected in a reduced 
leverage environment.  However, 
underperformance has more been driven 
by one strategy offsetting another rather 
than due to a lack of opportunities or 
leverage. 

 

Page 45



 

Avon Pension Fund  30 

Schroder – UK Property  

 

Relative returns #1  

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-20.0%

-16.0%

-12.0%

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

16.0%

20.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]  

Monthly relative returns #2 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)  

Asset Allocation #5 

Asset Allocation

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q109 Q209 Q309 Q409 Q110 Q210 Q310 Q410 Q111 Q211 Q311 Q411

Standard Retail Shopping Centres Retail Warehouses Central Lon. Offices

Rest of UK Offices Industrial Alternatives Cash  

Contribution to relative return #6 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

Q109 Q209 Q309 Q409 Q110 Q210 Q310 Q410 Q111 Q211 Q311 Q411

Core Value Added Opportunity Cash Total

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Schroders 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.6%, producing an 
absolute return of 1.9%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund produced a 
return of 8.1%, outperforming the benchmark 
by 1.2%.   

• Over the fourth quarter of 2011, the strongest 
contributor to relative performance came from 
the value add funds, which comprise 39.3% of 
the portfolio.  The value add funds have also 
been the strongest contributor over the last 12 
months. 

 
 

 

• The Fund retains an overweight position, 
relative to the benchmark in central 
London offices.  The Hansteen UK 
Investment Trust was the strongest 
performer at the stock level, which 
specialises in asset management intensive 
industrial properties. 

• Schroder were appointed to manage UK 
Property on a segregated, multi-manager 
basis.  The investments held within the 
underlying funds are primarily direct, 
although some managers might use listed 
securities for diversification.   

• Despite the illiquid nature of property 
investment, Schroder has been able to 
position the portfolio relative to the 
benchmark according its views and has 
been able to produce consistent 
outperformance. 

 
 

Page 46



 

Avon Pension Fund  31 

Partners – Overseas Property 

• The mandate awarded to Partners by the Fund commenced in August 2009, although draw downs are 

being made gradually over time and the full extent of the Fund's commitment has not yet been 
invested. 

• Partners invest in direct, primary and secondary private real estate investments on a global basis. 

 

Portfolio update 

To date, Partners have drawn down approximately £65 million, or approximately 49.4% of the Fund's 

intended commitment of approximately £134 million.  A total of £5.91 million was drawn down over the 
quarter.  The draw downs commenced in September 2009.    

 

Partners have communicated that the extent of the draw downs to date are broadly as they expected, and 

they note that their strategy is to build a diversified portfolio in a disciplined manner, spread across different 
"vintage" years. 

 

The funds invested to date have been split by Partners as follows: 

Partners Fund Net Drawn Down 
(£ Million) 

Net Asset Value as at 
31 December 2011 

(£ Million) 
Asia Pacific and Emerging Market Real Estate 2009 9.68 10.62 

Direct Real Estate 2011 2.69 2.53 

Distressed US Real Estate 2009  11.65 11.85 

Global Real Estate 2008  25.50 25.97 

Global Real Estate 2011  7.16 6.70 

Real Estate Secondary 2009  8.77 9.51 

Total (£) 65.46 67.18 

Source: Partners.  Please note, whilst the valuation on page 14 is as at 30 September 2011 (adjusted for cash flows), the 
above is Partners' valuation as at 31 December 2011. 

 

Page 47



 

Avon Pension Fund  32 

The investments in the funds noted above have resulted in a portfolio that was, as at 31 December 2011, 

split regionally as shown in the chart on the left below, and across different investment types as shown on 
the right.  We show in brackets for each region the current guideline allocations to each region that are in 

place for the Fund's portfolio. 

Geographical split based on Net Asset Value

Asia Pacific 
36% (10% - 

50%)

Europe
31% (10% - 

50%)

North America
25% (10% - 

50%)

Rest of the 
World

8% (0% -20%)

Investment type split based on Net Asset Value

Secondary
44% (0% - 

50%)

Primary
31% (40% - 

100%)

Direct
25% (0% - 

30%)

 
Source: Partners 

 

Changes to the geographical allocation to the portfolio over the quarter include a decrease to Europe from 
32% to 31%, to North America from 26% to 25% while the rest of the world allocation remained at 8%.  The 

exposure to the Asia Pacific region has increased from 34% to 36%. 

 

In terms of the portfolio allocation by investment type, the exposure to primary investments has increased 
from the position last quarter from 30% to 31%.  The exposure to secondary investments has decreased 

from 45% to 44%, while the exposure to direct investments remained constant at 25%.    

 

The exposure to Primary is currently below the guidelines, but short term deviation from the allocation 
restrictions in place can be expected at such an early stage of investment and we do not believe the current 

positioning to be of concern.  In total, 53% of the commitments are allocated to primary investments. 

 

Performance over Q4 2011 

Please note that due to data timing issues, Partners' returns and values will be lagged by a quarter, except 

those shown on this and the previous page, and therefore reflect the previous quarter's returns and values.  

 

Distributions since inception total £6.72m, with £2.11m distributions over the most recent quarter. 

 

Conclusion 

Over the quarter, Partners increased the amount drawn down by £5.91 million.  There have been some 

changes to the asset allocations and the geographical split; however, these are at present due to the draw-
downs from the amounts committed.  There have been no further changes to the guidelines, and those 

implemented in October 2010 remain in place.   

We have no concerns with Partners.  They appear to building the portfolio in a diversified manner thus not 

exposing the Fund to any one region or type of property investment. 

Page 48



 

Avon Pension Fund  33 

Royal London Asset Management – Fixed Interest 

 

Relative returns #1  

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-12.0%

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)

Performance v fund size #3 

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

Sep-

11

Dec-

11

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

£m

Fund size (r ight axi s) P'f ol i o qtr ly excess retur n (l ef t axis)

 

Relative Maturity exposure #8 

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%
-5%
0%

5%
10%
15%

20%
25%

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar -

11

Jun-

11

Sep-

11

Dec-

11

Short: < 5 years M edium: 5-10 years

M edium: 10-15 years Long: >15 years
 

Duration #10 

6.0

6.2

6.4

6.6

6.8

7.0

7.2

7.4

7.6

7.8

8.0

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11 Sep

11

Dec

11

Port folio durat ion Benchmark durat ion
 

Relative Ratings exposure #9 

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%
-5%
0%

5%
10%
15%

20%
25%

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar -

11

Jun-

11

Sep-

11

Dec-

11

AAA (or equivalent) AA (or equivalent) A (or equivalent)

BBB (or equivalent) Sub-inv. Grade Other
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and RLAM 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.4%, producing an 
absolute return of 2.7%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.7%, producing an absolute 
return of 7.6%.  Over a rolling 3 year period, 
the Fund outperformed the benchmark by 
1.8% p.a., producing an absolute return of 
10.5% p.a. 

• The Fund remains significantly underweight to 
AAA and to a lesser extent AA and A rated 
bonds, and overweight BBB and unrated 
bonds.  

• The Fund continues to be considerably 
overweight in medium term maturity bonds, 
and underweight short maturity and long 
dated bonds. 

 

• Intra month volatility is greater than that 
implied by quarterly relative performance.  
This is expected from an active corporate 
bond manager and is not cause for 
concern.   

• The active approach means that RLAM 
will look to identify good quality companies 
through superior research.  The high 
relative allocation to lower and unrated 
bonds at the expense of, higher quality, 
AAA or AA bonds should not be of 
concern. 

• Portfolio duration has remained close to 
the benchmark duration.  This is not 
expected to be a material source of return 
and is therefore as expected. 

Page 49



 

Avon Pension Fund  34 

BlackRock – Passive Multi-Asset 

 

Relative returns #1 

-0.2%

-0.1%

0.0%

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

0.4%

0.5%

0.6%

0.7%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-6.0%

-3.0%

0.0%

3.0%

6.0%

9.0%

12.0%

15.0%

18.0%

21.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]  

Monthly/Quarterly relative returns #2 

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)  

 

 Contribution to absolute return #6 

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11

UK equi t i es Nor th Amer i can Equi t i es

Eur opean Equi t i es Japan equi t i es

Pac Ri m Equi t i es Bonds

Cash Fund(s) Canada Equi t i es

T otal  

Asset Allocation #5 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11
UK equi ties Canada Equi ties Nor th Amer ican Equi ties

Eur opean Equi ties Japan equi ties Pac Ri m Equit ies

Total  bonds Cash Fund(s) Global  Equi ties  
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and BlackRock 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund tracked the 
benchmark, producing an absolute return of 
7.5%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund performed in line 
with its benchmark, producing an absolute 
return of 3.1%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund underperformed the benchmark by 0.2% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 11.7% 
p.a. 

• Being a passive mandate, with a customised 
benchmark based on the monthly mean fund 
weights, there is nothing unusual arising in 
risk and performance. 

 

• The magnitude of the relative volatility in 
the portfolio remains small.  

• There has been a fall over the quarter to 
the allocation to bonds and subsequent 
rise in the other asset classes.  This is 
primarily as a result of the tactical switch 
from gilts to corporate bonds, the latter of 
which are managed by RLAM. 

 

Page 50



 

Avon Pension Fund  35 

BlackRock No.2 – Property account (“ring fenced” assets) 

 

Relative returns #1  

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

Quarterly relative return
Rolling 3 year relative return (%p.a.)
Rolling 3 year benchmark return (% p.a.) [right axis]

 

Monthly relative returns #2  

-1.0%

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

Q3
10

Q4
10

Q1
11

Q2
11

Q3
11

Q4
11

Monthly/quarterly returns
+/- 1 σ monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 σ monthly (over 1 year)
-1 σ monthly (over 1 year)

 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and BlackRock 

Comments: 

• Over the last quarter, the Fund performed in 
line with its benchmark, producing an 
absolute return of 7.3%. 

• Over the last year, the Fund produced a 
return of 9.8%, underperforming the 
benchmark by 0.3%.  Over a rolling 3 year 
period, the Fund produced an absolute return 
of 7.3% p.a., outperforming the benchmark 
return by 0.1%. 

• Over the quarter the Fund's relative holding 
in cash, UK equities futures and US equity 
futures increased, and the relative holdings in 
UK gilts decreased. This is as a result of the 
Fund selling down £5m of UK gilts to raise 
cash to invest in the property portfolio.    

 

 

• Tracking of this portfolio relative to the 
benchmark remains within expected 
tolerance ranges. 

 

  

Page 51



 

Avon Pension Fund  36 

Appendix A – Market Events 

 

UK market events – Q4 2011 

• Quantitative Easing:  The Bank of England's quantitative easing program remained at £275 billion 

following the increase of £75 billion in October. 

• Government Debt:  At the end of December 2011 UK national debt stood at £1.004 trillion, or 64.2% 

of Gross Domestic Product. 

• Unemployment:  Britain’s unemployment rate spiked to 8.4% in November 2011, its highest level 

since 1996. The Office for National Statistics also said there were 2.7 million people out of work in the 

three months from September to November. This is the highest figure since 1994. 

• Manufacturing Sector:  The Purchasing Managers’ Index (“PMI”) manufacturing survey, increased to 

a seasonally adjusted figure of 49.6 in December, up from a revised reading of 47.7 in November. This 

was the third successive month below 50.  A figure that is below 50 is believed to indicate a 
contraction in activity.  The average PMI reading in Q4 2011 was the weakest since Q2 2009.    

• Inflation:  CPI annual inflation fell from 4.8% in November 2011 to 4.2% in December 2011.  RPI 
annual inflation fell from 5.2% in November 2011 to 4.8% in December 2011.  The drop in the CPI rate 

was the biggest monthly fall since April 2009, and the lowest rate since June 2011.  The figures 

reflected a 2.8% drop in the price of clothing and footwear as retailers cut prices to attract customers 

in the run-up to Christmas. However, food prices rose by 1.4%, despite recent fierce competition 
between the main supermarket chains. 

• Gross Domestic Product ("GDP"):  In the fourth quarter of 2011 GDP declined by 0.2%.  Output of 
the production industries decreased by 1.2% in Q4 2011, compared with an increase of 0.2% in the 

previous quarter.  The Construction sector output decreased by 0.5% in Q4 2011, compared with an 

increase of 0.3% in the previous quarter.  

• Interest Rate:  The Bank's Monetary Policy Committee voted on January 12, 2012 to maintain the 

interest rates at a record low of 0.5%, which has been at this level since March 2009.   

 

Europe market events – Q4 2011 

• European sovereign debt crisis:  Europe has been plunged into a fresh crisis after France was 
stripped of its coveted AAA credit rating in a mass downgrade of nine Eurozone countries by the 

ratings agency Standard & Poor's.  S&P said austerity was driving Europe even deeper into financial 

crisis as it also cut Austria's triple-A rating, and relegated Portugal and Cyprus to junk status.  The 

humiliating loss of France's top-rated status leaves Germany as the only other major economy inside 
the Eurozone with a AAA rating, and rekindled financial market anxiety about a possible break-up of 

the single currency. 

• Italy: Italy brought a glimmer of festive cheer to the markets late in December with a debt auction that 

saw its short-term borrowing costs fall by half.  The sale of bills and bonds was the first big test of 

market sentiment since the European Central Bank provided Eurozone lenders with a €489 billion 

liquidity injection on 21 December 2011.  Italian banks reportedly took up more than €100 billion of the 
ECB's three-year loans.  The results of the auction suggested the offering had made a big impact on 

the readiness of lenders to buy sovereign debt.  The rate on €9 billion of six-month treasury bills 

Page 52



 

Avon Pension Fund  37 

plunged to 3.25% from 6.5% the last time that securities of a similar maturity were auctioned in 

November 2011. Demand outstripped supply in a ratio of 1.7 to one, compared with 1.5 last month. 

• Greece: Greece faces its most difficult challenge since the second world war after the unexpected 

collapse of talks over a debt swap deal with its private creditors in January, the country's finance 
minister, Evangelos Venizelos, said.  Discussions over the deal – key to keeping default at bay and 

unlocking a second €130 billion (£108 billion) aid package for Greece – stalled when it became 

apparent that neither side could bridge their differences over interest rates on the new bonds.  The 

accord aims to slice €100 billion from Athens' increasingly unsustainable debt pile by inducing private 
investors that include banks and insurers to voluntarily accept 50% losses in the value of their Greek 

government holdings. 

• Spain: Spain's new government announced in late December that the country's budget deficit is 

higher than it was previously thought as it announced a new package of spending cuts and tax 

increases designed to conform to the Eurozone's austerity pact and fend off attack by international 

financial markets.  The principal measure comes in the form of an €8.9 billion budget cut spread 
across all government departments.  There are also across-the-board income tax increases and for 

home-owners, a one-year freeze on public sector salaries, a freeze on the minimum wage of €641.40 

a month and cuts in subsidies to trade unions and political parties.  Pensions will rise and the cut-off 

point for unemployment benefit is to be extended for a further six months. 

• France: Nicolas Sarkozy promised a last-ditch rush of economic reforms after France's credit rating 

downgrade was slammed by his political opponents as the mark of failure of his financial policy.  As 
markets brace themselves for a potentially decisive new stage of the Eurozone crisis in the wake of 

the mass downgrade of single currency members, the beleaguered French president promised to 

unveil a set of "important decisions" before the end of January and tried to bolster the depressed 

national mood.  Three months before the first round of the presidential election, the loss of France's 
AAA rating in a downgrade by Standard & Poor came as a blow to Sarkozy, who was already suffering 

from record unpopularity and facing a tough re-election battle.  Faced with very high public debt, low 

growth, high unemployment and looming recession, the French government pushed through two belt-

tightening plans in the course of four months last year, with measures that were less severe than 
British austerity cuts and focused more on raising taxes. 

• Unemployment:  The EU27 unemployment rate was at 9.9% in December 2011, 0.1% higher 
compared with October 2011.  Among the Member States, the lowest unemployment rates were 

recorded in Austria (4.1%), the Netherlands (4.9%) and Luxembourg (5.2%), and the highest in Spain 

(22.9%), Greece (18.8% as at September 2011) and Lithuania (15.3% as at September 2011).   

• Services and Manufacturing Sectors: The Eurozone composite PMI rose to 48.8 in December 2011 

from 47.0 in November 2011, the highest in 3 months.  Manufacturing PMI marginally rose to 46.9 

from 46.6 in November 2011, a 28-month low. Services PMI rose to 48.8 from 47.5 in November 2011. 

• Inflation:  The inflation rate in the Euro area fell from 3.0% in November to 2.7% in December 2011.  

This reading is below the initial estimate of 2.8% but still above the ECB's target of 2.0%. 

• GDP:  GDP growth for the fourth quarter was not available at the time of writing, although for the third 

quarter of 2011, this was 0.2%.   

• Interest Rate:  The European Central Bank cut interest rates by a quarter of a point in December to 

counter the twin threats of recession and deflation in the Eurozone. This rate cut bought the interest 
rates back to a record low of 1.0%. 

 

Page 53



 

Avon Pension Fund  38 

US market events – Q4 2011 

• Unemployment: The rate of unemployment in the US decreased from 9.1% in September 2011 to 

8.6% in December 2011.  Nonfarm payroll edged up by 200,000 in December 2011. 

• Manufacturing and Industrial Production:  Industrial production increased 0.4% in December after 

having fallen 0.3% in November. For the fourth quarter as a whole, industrial production rose at an 

annual rate of 3.1%, its 10th consecutive quarterly gain. In the manufacturing sector, output advanced 
0.9% in December. 

• Inflation: The US CPI rate decreased from 3.9% in September 2011 to 3.0% in December 2011.   

• GDP:  US real GDP increased by 2.8% over the fourth quarter of 2011, against a 2.5% increase in the 

third quarter.   

• Interest Rate:  The Federal Reserve continues to hold interest rates at 0.25%.  

 

Emerging Markets market events – Q4 2011 

• China's import growth showed an unexpectedly sharp drop in December in a new sign that the world's 
second-largest economy is slowing.  December growth in imports fell to 11.8%, just over half the 

previous month's 22.1% gain, showed by customs data.  Exports rose 13.4%, down slightly from 

November's growth rate.  The country's politically sensitive global trade surplus widened to $16.5 

billion (£10.7 billion).  The widening of China's trade surplus from $14.5 billion in November might fuel 
strains with the United States and other trading partners.  They complain Beijing is hampering access 

to its markets, hurting foreign companies at a time when governments worldwide are trying to revive 

growth and generate new jobs.  

• Foreign investment in China fell nearly 13% in December, from a year earlier, in the latest evidence of 

the rising toll that weakness in the west is taking on the economy.  Foreign direct investment covers 

spending on physical assets such as factories and does not include financial assets such as stocks.  

• The beleaguered Indian government has been forced to suspend its decision to allow international 

supermarkets to invest in India's £300 billion retail market in the face of political opposition.  Finance 
minister Pranab Mukherjee, one of the most senior members of the ruling centre-left Congress party, 

was reported to have told leaders of both rightwing and communist opposition parties that the 

government would postpone the implementation of the move to allow global companies such as 

Walmart, Tesco and Carrefour into India until more people were convinced of its merits.  

• Brazil has overtaken the UK to become the world's sixth-largest economy, according to a team of 

economists.  The banking crash of 2008 and the subsequent recession has relegated the UK to 
seventh place in 2011, behind South America's largest economy, which has boomed on the back of 

exports to China and the far east. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

Avon Pension Fund  39 

Global summary  

Economy 

• The rate of CPI inflation fell from 5.2% to 4.2% during the period under review and is expected to fall 

further over the coming months.  The Monetary Policy Committee ("MPC") kept interest rates on hold 

at 0.5% throughout the quarter and in October, it announced an extension to its policy of quantitative 

easing, increasing the size of its asset purchase programme by £75 billion to a total of £275 billion.  
The programme is expected to be completed in February 2012. 

• UK retail sales were boosted by a Christmas rush, according to the British Retail Consortium ("BRC").  
Despite the pre-Christmas rush, retailers reported very different results with Tesco and Argos 

reporting a fall in UK sales and John Lewis and Morrisons reporting a rise in sales.  Stephen 

Robertson, Director General of the BRC said, "a better than hoped-for December closed a relentlessly 

tough year for retailers, but these figures hinged on a dazzling last pre-Christmas week and were 
boosted by some major one-off factors." 

• The Office for National Statistics ("ONS") confirmed unemployment rose to a 17 year high of 2.68m 
and the number of people working part-time because they could not find full-time jobs reached a 

record high.  Unemployment rose by 118,000 between September and November, taking the 

unemployment rate to 8.4%.   

• The European Central Bank ("ECB") reduced interest rates (by 0.25%) at both its November and 

December meetings, from 1.5% to 1.0%.  The US Federal Reserve kept interest rates on hold at 

0.25%.  During the quarter the US Federal Reserve, the ECB and the central banks of the UK, 
Switzerland, Canada and Japan agreed to provide loans to banks, as it became apparent that 

Europe's banks were struggling to roll over $2 trillion of loans denominated in US Dollars as a 

consequence of liquidity in the interbank markets falling sharply.   

• The sovereign debt crisis facing the Eurozone continues to be extremely challenging, both politically 

and economically.  The cost of borrowing for countries such as Italy and Spain remains a political "hot 

potato" because the ECB does not have the power to guarantee bonds issued by member countries; a 
power that would limit speculation and depress bond yields.   

• The pound depreciated against the US Dollar and Yen over the quarter but appreciated against the 
Euro.  Concerns about the ongoing crisis in the Eurozone have resulted in the Euro falling to its lowest 

level against the US Dollar for 16 months.   

• The Greek government remains in negotiations with the EU regarding the second instalment of the 

bailout package that was agreed in principle in October.   

 

Equities 
• Global equities largely ended the year with a positive quarter despite the ongoing sovereign debt crisis 

in the Eurozone and severe volatility over year that has seen indiscriminate selling across stocks.  The 
fourth quarter saw a reversal in market sentiment driven by company fundamentals rather than macro 

economic factors driving events.   

Page 55



 

Avon Pension Fund  40 

• The FTSE-All Share Index produced a return over the quarter of 8.4% and Europe equities achieved a 

return of 3.3%, due to a belief that the markets have priced in the ongoing sovereign debt crisis in the 
Eurozone.  US equities were the strongest performing of the major equity markets producing a return 

of 11.9% as evidence emerged that the economy was growing at a faster rate than had been forecast.  

The equity markets in the Asia Pacific ex Japan and Emerging Markets regions produced returns of 

4.4% and 4.2% respectively.  The Japanese equity market produced a return of -3.6% and was the 
only major region in which the equity market produced a negative return. 

 

Fixed Interest 
• The UK gilt market continues to be perceived as a safe haven and long-dated gilt-edged securities 

produced a return of 9.6% over the quarter.  Index-linked gilts achieved a strong return over the 

quarter of 9.8%, whilst long-dated corporate bonds produced a return of 6.4%, despite the prices of 

bonds issued by financial companies continuing to be extremely volatile.   

• Gilt yields continued to fall amid the "flight-to-quality", caused by the continued uncertainty in the 

European bond markets.  Spanish and Italian bond yields continued to remain at a relatively high level 

over the quarter and as negotiations continued over the second bailout of the Greek economy.   

 

Alternative Asset Classes 
• Commodities produced a 9.2% return over the quarter, reversing the losses achieved in the third 

quarter and linked to the belief that the US economy was growing faster than had been forecast.  High 
Yield achieved a positive return of 5.6% over the quarter. 

• Commercial property continues to produce a positive return that is mainly driven by income from better 
quality properties, such as offices in central London.  Poorer quality assets not in prime locations are 

suffering and prices, rents and future income is expected to fall as hopes of an economic recovery 
fade. 

• Hedge funds produced an average return of 0.8%, disappointingly underperforming equities over the 
quarter.  Many hedge fund managers have seen severe losses due to the sovereign debt crisis facing 

the Eurozone. 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 

Avon Pension Fund  41 

Appendix B – Glossary of Charts 
 
The following provides a description of the charts used in Section 5 and a brief description of their 
interpretation. 

Reference Description 

#1 

-0.3 %
-0.2 %
-0.1%
0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%
0.5%
0.6%
0.7%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

0 7

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

-6%

-2%

2%

6%

10%

14%

Qua r te r ly  r e l a ti ve  r e tu r n

Ro ll i ng  3 yea r  r e l a ti ve  r e tu r n  ( % p .a . )

Ro ll i ng  3 yea r  be nc hma r k  r e tu r n  ( % p .a . ) [r i gh t a x i s ]  

This chart shows the quarterly relative return (blue bars) and rolling 3 year 

relative return (blue line) for the manager over 3 years/since inception.  This 
shows the ability of the manager to achieve and outperform the benchmark 

over the medium term.  The rolling 3 year benchmark absolute return (grey 

line) is overlayed to provide a context for relative performance, e.g. 

consistent underperformance in a falling market. 

#2 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q1

07

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

M onthl y r et ur n

+/ - 1 σ mont hl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 σ mont hl y  (over  1 year )  

This chart shows the relative monthly returns for 3 years/since inception.  It 

shows the level of fluctuation about the zero axis, i.e. the level of volatility of 
monthly returns and any tendency for positive or negative returns.  The 

dotted lines show the standard deviation of returns over 1 year periods - this 

is a standard measure of risk which shows the magnitude of fluctuations of 

monthly returns.  Under common assumptions, being within the inside 
dotted lines (i.e. 1 standard deviation) is roughly likely to occur 2/3rds of the 

time, while being within the outside lines is roughly likely to occur 1 in 20 

times (i.e. 2 standard deviation - which is considered unlikely). 

#3 

-10%

-8%
-6%

-4%

-2%

0%
2%

4%

6%
8%

10%

Mar-

07

Jun-

07

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m

Fund s i ze (r i ght ax i s ) P 'f ol i o qt r ly  excess  r etur n ( lef t  ax is )

1 σ in 3 y r  excess  r et urn per  qt r 2 σ i n 3 y r  excess  r et ur n per  qtr  

This chart shows the relative performance on a quarterly basis.  The dotted 

lines show the standard deviation of returns for a quarter - based on the 

latest quarter 3 year standard deviation.  (See #2 above for further detail on 
interpretation).  The total size of the underlying fund is overlayed in yellow 

(portfolio value in blue) to identify any trend in diminished performance with 

increasing fund (portfolio) size, as sometimes observed. 

#4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Mar

07

Jun

07

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

-1.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

T ur nover  (%)  [ r ight  ax is ]

T r acki ng Er r or  -  r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p. a. )  [ lef t  ax is ]

Inf or mat ion Rat i o - r ol l ing 3 year  ( t imes)  [ r ight  ax is ]  

This chart shows the 3 year annualised tracking error (this is the standard 

deviation of returns which shows the magnitude of the fund returns 

compared to the benchmark) and the 3 year information ratio (this is the 
excess return divided by the tracking error).  If tracking error increases, the 

risk taken away from the benchmark increases, and we would expect an 

increase in the excess return over time (albeit more variable).  The turnover 

is provided to show if any increase in risk is reflected in an increase in the 
level of active management, i.e. purchases/sales in the portfolio. 

#5 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

UK  equi t ies Canada Equi t ies Nor th Amer i can Equit ies

Eur opean Equit ies Japan equi ti es Pac  Ri m Equit i es

t otal  bonds Cash Fund(s )  

This chart shows the absolute asset allocation or hedge fund strategy 
allocation over time.  This helps to identify any significant change or trends 

over time in allocation to particular asset allocations/hedge fund strategies. 

#6 

-12 %

-10 %

- 8 %

- 6 %

- 4 %

- 2 %

0 %

2 %

4 %

6 %

8 %

Sep-07 Dec -07 Mar-08 J un-08 Sep-08 Dec -08 Mar-09 J un-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

Conver ti ble Ar bit r age Cr edit  St rat egies
Di s tr ess  Secur it i es Event D r iven

Fi xed Income Ar bi tr age Long/ shor t Equit y

M acr o St r ategi es  - Di scr et ionar y Macr o St rat egies  -  Syst emati c

Quant it ati ve Str at egies Volat i l i ty  A rbi t rage

Por t f ol i o r etur n  

These charts show the breakdown of the return provided by each of the 
different hedge fund strategies or asset classes over time - this provides a 

profile of where the returns come from, and should be compared with the 
volatility chart above to see if risk taken is being rewarded accordingly.  The 

total portfolio return is also shown. 

Page 57



 

Avon Pension Fund  42 

#7 

-15%

-10%

- 5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15.0% -10.0% - 5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0%
Port f olio ret urn - quart erly (%)

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gil t s Al l  Stocks

This chart plots the quarterly returns of the fund against quarterly returns of 

various indices.  Any plots on the diagonal line represent the fund and the 
index achieving the same quarterly return - any below the line represents 

underperformance relative to the index, above the line represents 

outperformance.  This is to highlight any apparent correlation between the 

fund returns and any particular index.  If a fund is used as a diversifier from, 
say equities, we would expect to see a lack of returns plotted close to the 

diagonal line. 

#8 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09
Short : < 5 years M edium: 5-10 years

Medium: 10-15 years Long: >15 years

 

This chart shows the holding in short, medium and long maturity bonds 

relative to the benchmark.  Over/underweight positions expose the fund to 

changes in the yield curve at different terms. 

#9 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

AAA (or equivalent) AA (or equivalent) A (or equivalent)

BBB (or equivalent) Sub-inv. Grade Other

 

This chart shows the holding in bonds with different credit ratings.  AAA is 

the highest grading (usually for government or supranational organisation 

bonds) while below BBB is sub-investment grade and has a considerably 

higher risk of default.  The lower the grade the higher the risk and therefore 
the higher the return expected on the bond. 

#1

0 

6.0

6.2

6.4

6.6

6.8

7.0

7.2

7.4

7.6

7.8

8.0

Sep 07 Dec 07 Mar 08 Jun 08 Sep 08 Dec 08 Mar 09 Jun 09 Sep 09 Dec 09

Por t f ol io dur at ion Benchmar k  dur at ion  

This chart shows the duration of the fund against the benchmark duration.  It 

shows whether the fixed interest fund manager is taking duration bets 
against the benchmark. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report is written for the addressees only and may not be further copied or distributed without the prior permission of 
JLT Investment Consulting.  The value of investments can fall as well as rise and you may get back less than your 
original investment.  The past is no guide to future performance.  The information contained in this report is compiled 
from sources which we believe to be reliable and accurate at the date of this report. 
 

Page 58



 A
vo

n
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
43

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 –
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 M

an
da

te
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
M

an
d

at
e 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

O
u

tp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 t
ar

g
et

 
(p

.a
.)

 

Ju
pi

te
r 

 
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

S
oc

ia
lly

 R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 In
ve

st
in

g)
 

F
TS

E
 A

ll 
S

ha
re

 
+2

%
 

T
T 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

U
nc

on
st

ra
in

ed
) 

F
TS

E
 A

ll 
S

ha
re

 
+3

-4
%

 

In
ve

sc
o 

G
lo

ba
l e

x-
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

(E
n.

 In
de

xa
tio

n)
 

M
S

C
I W

or
ld

 e
x 

U
K

 N
D

R
 

+0
.5

%
 

S
ch

ro
de

r 
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

iti
es

 (
U

nc
on

st
ra

in
ed

) 
M

S
C

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 In

de
x 

F
re

e 
+3

.5
-4

.5
%

 

S
S

gA
 

E
ur

op
e 

ex
-U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

E
nh

an
ce

d 
In

de
xa

tio
n)

 
F

TS
E

 A
W

 E
ur

op
e 

ex
 U

K
 

+0
.5

%
 

S
S

gA
 

P
ac

ifi
c 

in
c.

 J
ap

an
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

E
nh

an
ce

d 
In

de
xa

tio
n)

 
F

TS
E

 A
W

 D
ev

 A
si

a 
P

ac
ifi

c 
+0

.5
%

 

G
en

es
is

 
E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
t E

qu
iti

es
 

M
S

C
I E

M
 IM

I T
R

 
- 

Ly
st

er
 W

at
so

n 
F

un
d 

of
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 

3M
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 4
%

 
+0

-2
%

 

M
A

N
 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 5

.7
5%

 
+0

-0
.2

5%
 

S
ig

ne
t 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
 

+1
-3

%
 

S
te

nh
am

 
F

un
d 

of
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 

3M
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 3
%

 
+1

-3
%

 

G
ot

te
x 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
 

+1
-3

%
 

B
la

ck
R

oc
k 

P
as

si
ve

 M
ul

ti-
as

se
t 

In
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
cu

st
om

is
ed

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

 
us

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 m
ea

n 
fu

nd
 w

ei
gh

ts
 

0%
 

B
la

ck
R

oc
k 

O
ve

rs
ea

s 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

C
us

to
m

is
ed

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

 
us

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 
m

ea
n 

fu
nd

 w
ei

gh
ts

 
0%

 

R
LA

M
 

U
K

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
d 

F
un

d 
iB

ox
x 

£ 
no

n-
G

ilt
s 

al
l m

at
ur

iti
es

 
+0

.8
%

 

S
ch

ro
de

r 
U

K
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

IP
D

 U
K

 p
oo

le
d 

+1
.0

%
 

P
ar

tn
er

s 
G

lo
ba

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
IP

D
 G

lo
ba

l p
oo

le
d 

+2
.0

%
 

C
as

h 
In

te
rn

al
ly

 M
an

ag
ed

 
7 

da
y 

LI
B

ID
 

 

Page 59



 

   

JLT Investment Consulting. A trading name of JLT Benefit Solutions Limited. 
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.  
Registered in England: 6 Crutched Friars, London EC3N 2PH 
Tel +44 (0)20 7528 4000 Fax +44 (0)20 7528 4500. www.jltgroup.com.  
Registered in England No 0224 0496. VAT No. 244 2321 96  
© February 2012 

CONTACTS  
John Finch 
JLT Investment Consulting 
Tel:  +44 (0) 0161 253 1168 
Email:  john_finch@jltgroup.com 
 
Jignesh Sheth 
JLT Investment Consulting 
Tel:  +44 (0) 0161 253 1154 
Email:  jignesh_sheth@jltgroup.com 
 

 

JLT Investment Consulting 

St James's House, 7 Charlotte Street 
Manchester, M1 4DZ 
Fax +44 (0) 161 253 1169 

Page 60



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Investment Panel 
MEETING 
DATE: 22 FEBRUARY 2012 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: TT UK Equity Mandate 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Exempt Appendix 1 – Summary of Investment Panel meeting with TT (7 Sept 2011) 
Exempt Appendix 2 – TT Peer Group Analysis 
 
 

 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 TT are presenting to the Panel as part of the Panel’s review of TT’s performance 

following a deterioration in the longer term performance trend over the last 12 
months.  

 
 

 

2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 The Investment Panel recommends to the Avon Pension Fund Committee 

any action required 
 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 61



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 There is a potential impact on costs should there be any change to the investment 

manager structure. Careful analysis would be undertaken on the impact of any 
change in costs before any changes would be made. 
 

4 BACKGROUND 
4.1 Following a period in which TT failed to achieve their performance target the 

Investment Panel met with TT on September 7 2011. A summary of that meeting 
is provided in Exempt Appendix 1. Subsequently, the Panel considered a report 
from the Fund’s investment consultant which provided a peer group analysis of 
performance and risk. This analysis is included again at Exempt Appendix 2. The 
analysis concluded that: 
(1) TT's active decisions appear consistent with its peers; 
(2) TT are managing the portfolio in a way that is consistent with the mandate; and 
(3) There are areas for further analysis at the next presentation by TT in February 
2012 

 
5 ISSUE 
5.1 The Investment Panel will receive a presentation from TT to further explain 

investment performance.  
5.2 The presentation will focus on the attribution of performance to sector and stock 

selection to give greater insight into the drivers of performance. 
 

6 RISK MANAGEMENT 
6.1 A key risk to the Fund is that the investments fail to generate the returns required 

to meet the Fund’s future liabilities.  This risk is managed via the Asset Liability 
Study which determines the appropriate risk adjusted return profile (or strategic 
benchmark) for the Fund and through the selection process followed before 
managers are appointed.  This report monitors the return of the strategic 
benchmark and the performance of the investment managers.  An Investment 
Panel has been established to consider in greater detail investment performance 
and related matters and report back to the committee on a regular basis. 
 

7 EQUALITIES 
7.1 This report is primarily for information only. 
8 CONSULTATION 
8.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore consultation is not necessary. 

Page 62



Printed on recycled paper 3

9 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
9.1 The issues to consider are contained in the report. 
10 ADVICE SOUGHT 
10.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 
 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager (Tel: 01225 395306) 
Background papers  

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Access to Information Arrangements 

 
Exclusion of access by the public to Council meetings 

 
 
Information Compliance Ref: LGA-12-002 
 
 
Meeting / Decision: Avon Pension Fund Investment Panel 
 
Date: 22 February 2012 
 
 
Author: Liz Feinstein 
 
Report Title: Review Of Investment Performance For Periods Ending 31 
December 2011 
 
Exempt Appendix Title:  
 Appendix 1 – Summary of Investment Panel meeting with TT (7 Sept 
2011) 

Appendix 2 – TT Peer Group Analysis 
 
 
The Report contains exempt information, according to the categories set out 
in the Local Government Act 1972 (amended Schedule 12A). The relevant 
exemption is set out below. 
 

 
The public interest test has been applied, and it is concluded that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosure at this time. It is therefore recommended that the Report be 
withheld from publication on the Council website. The paragraphs below set 
out the relevant public interest issues in this case. 
 
 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 
 
If the Committee wishes to consider a matter with press and public excluded, 
it must be satisfied on two matters. 
 

Stating the exemption: 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

Page 65



 

Page 2 of 2 

Firstly, it must be satisfied that the information likely to be disclosed falls 
within one of the accepted categories of exempt information under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  Paragraph 3 of the revised Schedule 12A of the 1972 
Act exempts information which relates to the financial or business affairs of 
the investment managers which is commercially sensitive to the investment 
managers. The officer responsible for this item believes that this information 
falls within the exemption under paragraph 3 and this has been confirmed by 
the Council’s Information Compliance Manager.  
 
Secondly, it is necessary to weigh up the arguments for and against 
disclosure on public interest grounds.  The main factor in favour of disclosure 
is that all possible Council information should be public and that increased 
openness about Council business allows the public and others affected by 
any decision the opportunity to participate in debates on important issues in 
their local area.  Another factor in favour of disclosure is that the public and 
those affected by decisions should be entitled to see the basis on which 
decisions are reached.   
 
Weighed against this is the fact that exempt appendix 2 contains the 
observations and opinions of an external consultant about the expected and 
actual performance of investment managers.  Exempt appendix 1 also 
contains the opinions of Council officers and Panel members.  Both 
appendices also contain details of the investment processes/strategies of the 
investment managers. 
 
It would not be in the public interest if advisors and officers could not express 
in confidence opinions which are held in good faith and on the basis of the 
best information available. The information to be discussed is also 
commercially sensitive and if disclosed could prejudice the commercial 
interest’s of the investment managers. 
  
It is also important that the Committee should be able to retain some degree 
of private thinking space while decisions are being made, in order to discuss 
openly and frankly the issues under discussion in order to make a decision 
which is in the best interests of the Fund’s stakeholders. 
 
The Council considers that the public interest has been served by the fact that 
a significant amount of information regarding the performance of the fund and 
investment managers has been made available on these issues – by way of 
the main report. 
 

Page 66



Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES: 22 NOVEMBER 2011
	8 REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2011
	Repperfqe31Dec11 - Appendix 1
	Repperfqe31Dec11 - Appendix 2

	9 TT UK EQUITY MANDATE
	LGA-12-002
	Rep TT UK Equity Mandate - Exempt Appendix 1
	Rep TT UK Equity Mandate - Exempt Appendix 2


